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OFFEICIAL STATEMENT

$29,340,000
GENERAL OBLIGATION AIRPORT BONDS, SERIES 2007A
DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

Dated: April 1, 2007 Due: June 1, 2008/2017

The $29,340,000 General Obligation Airport Bonds, Series 2007A (the “Bonds”) are being issued by Dane County, Wisconsin (the
“County”) pursuant to Chapter 67 of the Wisconsin Statutes to pay the cost of the construction of a parking ramp addition to the Dane
County Airport. The Bonds will be general obligations of the County for which its full faith and credit and unlimited taxing powers
are pledged. The Bonds will be issued as fully registered Bonds without coupons and, when issued, will be registered in the name of
CEDE & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company (the “Depository”). The Depository will act as securities depository of
the Bonds. Individual purchases may be made in book-entry form only, in the principal amount of $5,000 and integral multiples
thereof. Purchasers will not receive certificates representing their interest in the Bonds purchased. (See “Book-Entry Only System”
herein.)

Principal, payable on each June 1 commencing June 1, 2008 as set forth below, and interest on the Bonds, payable semiannually on
each June 1 and December 1 commencing December 1, 2007, will be paid to the Depository, which will in turn remit such principal
and interest to its participants for subsequent disbursement to the beneficial owners of the Bonds. See “Book-Entry Only System”
herein.

Interest CUSIP Interest CUSIP
Year Amount Rate Yield 236091 Year Amount Rate Yield 236091
2008 $ 2,465,000 4.000% 3.640% XE9 2013 $2,965,000 4.000% 3.670% XK5
2009 2,555,000  4.000% 3.670% XF6 2014 3,080,000  4.000% 3.690% XL3
2010 2,655,000  4.000% 3.660% XG4 2015 3,205,000  4.000% 3.700% XM1
2011 2,755,000  4.000% 3.650% XH2 2016 3,335,000  4.000% 3.750% XN9
2012 2,855,000  4.000% 3.650% XJ8 2017 3,470,000  4.000% 3.760% XP4

The Bonds maturing on June 1, 2016 and thereafter are subject to prior redemption at the option of the County on June 1, 2015 and
any date thereafter at a price of par plus accrued interest.

Registrar/Paying Agent: County Treasurer.
Not Bank Qualified: The Bonds are not designated as “Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations.”
Legal Opinion: Quarles & Brady LLP, Milwaukee, Wisconsin.

First Southwest Company has agreed to purchase the General Obligation Airport Bonds, Series 2007A from Dane County, Wisconsin
for an aggregate price of $29,729,123.91 plus accrued interest. The Bonds will be available for delivery on or about April 5, 2007.

The date of this Official Statement is March 15, 2007

(THIS COVER PAGE CONTAINS CERTAIN INFORMATION FOR QUICK REFERENCE ONLY. IT IS NOT A SUMMARY OF THIS ISSUE. INVESTORS MUST READ THE
ENTIRE OFFICIAL STATEMENT TO OBTAIN INFORMATION ESSENTIAL TO THE MAKING OF AN INFORMED INVESTMENT DECISION.)
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INTRODUCTION TO THE OFFICIAL STATEMENT

The following information is furnished solely to provide limited introductory information regarding the County’s
$29,340,000 General Obligation Airport Bonds, Series 2007A (the “Bonds’), and does not purport to be
comprehensive. All such information is qualified in its entirety by reference to the more detailed descriptions
appearing in this Official Statement, including the appendices hereto.

Issuer:

Security:

Purpose and Authority:

Optional Redemption:

Denominations:

Registration & Exchange:

Record Date:
Principal Payments:
Interest Payments:

Not Bank Qualified:

Professional Consultants:

Legal Matters:

Conditions Affecting
Issuance of Obligations:

Dane County, Wisconsin.

The Bonds will be general obligations of the County, secured by an unlimited tax
levy. The Bonds will be payable from ad valorem taxes levied upon all taxable
property in the County which may be levied without limitation of rate or amount.

The Bonds are being issued to finance a parking ramp addition to the Dane County
Airport pursuant to the Laws of the State of Wisconsin including Chapter 67 of
the Wisconsin Statutes and resolutions adopted by the County Board on February
15, 2007 and March 15, 2007.

The Bonds maturing in the years June 1, 2016 and thereafter are subject to prior
redemption on June 1, 2015 and any date thereafter at a price of par plus accrued
interest to the redemption date.

$5,000 or integral multiples thereof.

Upon presentation to the Registrar, Bonds will be exchanged for one or more
Bonds in multiples of $5,000.

The 15th day of the month preceding the payment date.

Annually, June 1, 2008 through 2017.

On each June 1 and December 1, commencing December 1, 2007.

The Bonds will not be designated as “Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations.”

Financial Advisor: Public Financial Management, Inc.
Milwaukee, Wisconsin

Bond Counsel: Quarles & Brady LLP

Milwaukee, Wisconsin

Legal matters incident to the authorization and issuance of the Bonds are subject
to the opinion of Quarles & Brady LLP, Bond Counsel, as to validity and tax
exemption. The opinion will be substantially in the form set forth in Appendix B
attached hereto. Bond Counsel has not participated in the preparation of Official
Statement except for information under the headings “LEGAL MATTERS - Tax
Considerations” and “LEGAL MATTERS - Approval of Legal Proceedings” and
in the Official Notice of Sale.

The Bonds are offered when, as and if issued, subject to the approving legal
opinion of Quarles & Brady LLP, Milwaukee, Wisconsin.



Delivery:

Book-Entry Only:

No Litigation:

Limitations on Offering or
Reoffering Securities:

Continuing Disclosure:

The County will deliver the Bonds anywhere in the United States as designated by
the purchaser within 40 days against payment in immediately available funds.
Delivery is expected on or about April 5, 2007.

The Bonds will be issued as book-entry only securities through The Depository
Trust Company.

There is no litigation now pending or, to the knowledge of County officials,
threatened, which questions the validity of the Bonds or of any proceedings of the
County taken with respect to the issuance or sale thereof.

No dealer, broker, salesman or other person has been authorized by the County or
the Financial Advisor to give any information or to make any representations other
than those contained in the Official Statement and, if given or made, such
information and representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized
by the County, or the Financial Advisor. The Official Statement does not
constitute an offer to sell or solicitation of an offer to buy, nor shall there be any
sale of the Bonds by any person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such
person to make such offer, solicitation or sale.

The resolution awarding the sale of the Bonds, will covenant and agree on behalf
of the County, for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds from time to time, to
comply with the provisions of Securities and Exchange Commission Regulations,
17 C.F.R. Section 240. Paragraph (b)(5) of 15c2-12, (“Rule 15¢2-12”); and, for
this purpose, to provide to nationally recognized securities repositories and any
Wisconsin state information depository, annual financial information of the type
included in the Official Statement, including audited financial statements, and
notice of the occurrence of events which materially affect the terms, payment,
security, rating or tax status of the Bonds. The County is the only “obligated
person” in respect of the Bonds within the meaning of Rule 15c2-12. A
description of the undertaking is in Appendix D.

Questions regarding the Bonds or the Official Statement can be directed to and additional copies of the Official
Statement, the City’s audited financial reports and the Resolutions authorizing the Bonds may be obtained from
Public Financial Management, Inc., 115 South 84th Street, Suite 100, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53214, (414) 771-
2700, the City’s financial advisor.



DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS

Authorization and Purpose

The Bonds are being issued pursuant to Section 67 of Wisconsin Statutes, an authorizing resolution that was
adopted on February 15, and an award resolution for the Bonds adopted by the County Board of Supervisors on
March 15, 2007.

The proceeds of the Bonds will be used to finance the construction of a parking ramp addition at the Dane County
Airport.

Sources and Uses

The estimated sources and uses for the Bonds are as follows.

Table 1
Estimated Sources and Uses
Estimated Sources: Amount
Par Amount $ 29,340,000.00
Original Issue Premium 432,451.40
Accrued Interest 13,040.00
Total Sources of Funds $ 29,785,491.40

Estimated Uses:

Project Fund $29,276,700.00
Debt Service Fund 402,163.91
Cost of Issuance 63,300.00
Underwriter's Discount 43,327.49
Total Uses of Funds $ 29,785,491.40

Security Provisions

Non-repealable, Direct, Annual Tax. As security for the Bonds, the County pledges its full faith, credit and taxing
powers and there will be levied on all of the taxable property in the County a non-repealable, direct, annual tax in an
amount and the times sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds. The taxes will be levied under the
Award Resolution for collection in each of the years 2008 through 2017 for the Bonds.

The Award Resolution provides that the taxes will be, from year to year, carried onto the tax rolls of the County and
collected as other taxes are collected and that the County shall not repeal such levies or obstruct the collection of the
taxes. Provision is made for reducing the amount of taxes carried onto the tax rolls by the amount of any surplus
money in the Debt Service Fund for the Bonds.

Debt Service Fund

Pursuant to the Award Resolution, a separate account designated as the “Debt Service Fund Account for
$29,340,000 Dane County General Obligation Airport Bonds, Series 2007A, dated April 1, 2007 will be
established within the treasury of the County.



The Award Resolution provides that the proceeds of taxes levied in the Award Resolution when collected by the
Treasurer shall be placed and kept by the Treasurer as a separate fund irrevocably pledged for paying the principal
of and interest on the Bonds so long as any such Bonds shall remain outstanding. Any accrued interest and any
premium received at the time of delivery of the Bonds shall be paid over to said fund. Interest on or principal of the
Bonds falling due at any time when there shall be on hand in the Debt Service Fund insufficient funds for the
payment of such principal and interest shall be paid promptly when due from other funds of the County.

Borrowed Money Fund

The Award Resolution establishes a Borrowed Money Fund into which the proceeds of the Bonds shall be placed
and kept by the Treasurer designated as the “Borrowed Money Fund.” Monies in the Borrowed Money Fund,
including the earnings thereon, shall be used solely for the purpose for which borrowed or for transfer to the Debt
Service Fund as provided by law. The Treasurer may pay any costs relating to the issuance of the Bonds with
investment of the Borrowed Money Fund out of said funds.

Redemption Provisions

The Bonds maturing in the years June 1, 2016 and thereafter are subject to prior redemption on June 1, 2015 and
any date thereafter at a price of par plus accrued interest to the redemption date.

Redemption may be in whole or in part and if in part at the option of the County and in such manner as the County
shall determine. If less than all Bonds of one maturity are called for redemption, the County will notify DTC of the
particular amount of such maturity to be prepaid. DTC will determine by lot the amount of each participant’s
interest in such maturity to be redeemed and each participant will then select by lot the beneficial ownership interest
in such maturity to be redeemed. All prepayments shall be at a price of par plus accrued interest.

Notice of Redemption

The County, so long as the Global Book Entry System is used for recording ownership of the Bonds, shall send any
notice of redemption to The Depository Trust Company (the “Depository”). Any such notice of redemption shall be
in the possession of the Depository no less than thirty and no more than sixty days prior to the redemption date.
Any failure of the Depository to mail such notice to any participants shall not affect the validity of the redemption
of Bonds. In the case of certificated bonds, the Registrar shall give notice of redemption of any bonds by first class
mail to the holders thereof registered on its books not less than thirty days and not more than sixty days prior to the
date fixed for redemption.

Interest Payments and Computation

Interest on the Bonds will be computed on a 360-day year, 30-day month basis. Payments coming due on a non-
business day will be paid the following business day. Interest will be payable semiannually on June 1 and
December 1 commencing December 1, 2007.

Registration, Transfer and Exchange

The Bonds will be initially registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of the Depository. The Depository
will act as securities depository for the Bonds. Individual purchases may be made in book-entry form only, in the
principal amount of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof. Purchasers will not receive certificates representing their
interest in the Bonds purchased. See “Book-Entry Only System.”



Book-Entry Only System

The information contained in the following paragraphs of this subsection “Book-Entry Only System” has been
extracted from a schedule prepared by Depository Trust Company (“DTC™) entitled “SAMPLE OFFERING
DOCUMENT LANGUAGE DESCRIBING BOOK-ENTRY ONLY ISSUANCE.”  The County makes no
representation as to the completeness or the accuracy of such information or as to the absence of material adverse
changes in such information subsequent to the date hereof.

DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds. The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities
registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC's partnership nominee). One fully-registered certificate will be issued
for each annual maturity of the Bonds, each in the aggregate principal amount of such annual maturity, and such
certificates will be deposited with DTC.

DTC is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a “banking organization”
within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a “clearing
corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency” registered
pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds securities that its
participants (“Participants™) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the settlement among Participants of securities
transactions, such as transfers and pledges, in deposited securities through electronic computerized book-entry
changes in Participants' accounts, thereby eliminating the need for physical movement of securities certificates.
Direct Participants include securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain
other organizations (“Direct Participants”). DTC is owned by a number of its Direct Participants and by the New
York Stock Exchange, Inc., the American Stock Exchange, Inc., and the National Association of Securities Dealers,
Inc. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as securities brokers and dealers, banks, and trust
companies that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or
indirectly (“Indirect Participants”). The Rules applicable to DTC and its Participants are on file with the Securities
and Exchange Commission.

Purchases of securities under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive a
credit for the Bonds on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Certificate
(“Beneficial Owner™) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial Owners
will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase, but Beneficial Owners are expected to receive
written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the
Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of
ownership interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Participants acting on
behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests
in Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Participants with DTC are registered in the name of
DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co. The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of
Cede & Co. effect no change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of
the Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Bonds are credited,
which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of
their holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect
Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by
arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. will consent or vote with respect to Bonds. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an
Omnibus Proxy to the County as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s
consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Bonds are credited on the record date
(identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).



Principal and interest payments on the Bonds will be made to DTC. DTC'’s practice is to credit Direct Participants’
accounts on the payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s records unless DTC has
reason to believe that it will not receive payment on the payable date. Payments by Participants to Beneficial
Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the
accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street name," and will be the responsibility of such Participant
and not of DTC, the County or the Trustee, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect
from time to time. Payment of principal and interest to DTC is the responsibility of the County or the Trustee,
disbursements of such payments to Direct Participants shall be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such
payments to the Beneficial Owners shall be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as securities depository with respect to the Bonds at any time by giving
reasonable notice to the County or the Trustee. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor securities
depository is not obtained, Bonds are required to be printed and delivered.

NEITHER THE COUNTY, NOR THE UNDERWRITER WILL HAVE ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR
OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPANTS, TO INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS OR TO ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER
WITH RESPECT TO (1) THE ACCURACY OF ANY RECORDS MAINTAINED BY DTC, ANY DTC
PARTICIPANT OR ANY INDIRECT PARTICIPANT; (2) THE PAYMENT BY DTC, ANY DTC
PARTICIPANT OR ANY INDIRECT PARTICIPANT OF ANY AMOUNT WITH RESPECT TO THE
PRINCIPAL OF, PREMIUM, IF ANY, OR INTEREST ON THE BONDS; (3) ANY NOTICE WHICH IS
PERMITTED OR REQUIRED TO BE GIVEN TO CERTIFICATEHOLDERS; (4) ANY CONSENT GIVEN BY
DTC OR OTHER ACTION TAKEN BY DTC AS CERTIFICATEHOLDER; OR (5) THE SELECTION BY DTC,
ANY DTC PARTICIPANT OR ANY INDIRECT PARTICIPANT OF ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER TO
RECEIVE PAYMENT IN THE EVENT OF A PARTIAL REDEMPTION OF THE BONDS.

Continuing Disclosure

The County has covenanted for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds to provide certain financial information and
operating data relating to the County by not later than 365 days following the end of its fiscal year (the “Annual
Report”) and to provide notices of the occurrence of certain enumerated events if deemed by the County to be
material. The Annual Report will be filed by the County with each Nationally Recognized Municipal Securities
Information Repository (and with any designated State Information Depository). The notices of material events will
be filed by the County with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (and with any designated State Information
Depository). The specific nature of the information to be contained in the Annual Report or the notices of material
events is summarized below under the caption Appendix D - “Continuing Disclosure Certificate.” These covenants
have been made in order to assist the Underwriters in complying with SEC Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5).

A failure by the County to comply with the undertaking will not constitute an event of default on the Bonds
(although holders will have the right to obtain specific performance of the obligation under the undertaking).
Nevertheless such a failure must be reported in accordance with the Rule and must be considered by any broker
dealer or municipal securities dealer before recommending the purchase or sale of the Bonds in the secondary
market. Consequently such a failure may adversely affect the transferability and liquidity of the Bonds and their
market price.

The County has never failed to comply in all material respects with any previous undertakings with regard to said
Rule to provide annual reports or notices of material events.



THE COUNTY

Introduction

Dane County, located in south central Wisconsin, covers an area of 1,238 square miles and is approximately 70
miles west of Milwaukee. The County is a single-county metropolitan area comprised of eight cities, nineteen
villages and thirty-four townships, with an estimated population of 464,513. The County seat is located in the City
of Madison, which is the state capitol. The City of Madison is also home to over 40,000 students at the University
of Wisconsin-Madison and Madison Area Technical College. The County was incorporated in 1839 under the
General Laws of the State of Wisconsin. The County has the third highest equalized property tax base and per
capita income and is the second most populous county in the State. The County is recognized as having an
exceptionally high level of citizen participation in civic and governmental affairs; substantial continuing effort is
committed to insuring citizen input as an integral part of County government.

County Officials

The County Executive

Dane County is organized under a County Executive form of government. The County Executive is a non-partisan
position, elected in a county-wide election for a four-year term. The County Executive coordinates and directs all
management functions of County government, and appoints all department heads, members of boards, committees
and commissions unless otherwise provided by law. The County Executive is the chief executive officer of the
County and has veto power over all acts of the Board of Supervisors. A two-thirds vote of members is required to
overturn a County Executive veto.

The County Board

The County is governed by a non-partisan, thirty-seven member Board of Supervisors elected by district to two-year
terms. From its members, the Board elects a chairperson, responsible for conducting the proceedings of the Board
at its meetings. The Board exercises legislative control over all County government operations.

Administration Organization

Dane County Government includes 30 departments. Department heads are appointed by and report to the County
Executive, except those departments headed by elected officials. Departments operate within six broad functional
areas including general government; public safety and criminal justice; public works; health and human services;
culture, education and recreation; and conservation and economic development. The County employs
approximately 2,100 full-time equivalent persons.

General Government

A countywide system of budget preparation, financial planning and reporting and fiscal control is provided by the
Department of Administration. Other general government functions include the County Executive and County
Board and the constitutional offices of County Clerk, County Treasurer and Register of Deeds.

Public Safety and Criminal Justice

Sheriff operations include bailiff services, process serving, traffic control and patrol, investigation and jail facilities.
The County operates three jail facilities including a 144 bed work release facility, a 400 bed minimum security
facility and a 400 bed main jail. The 400 bed minimum security facility opened in late 1994. Other public safety
functions include the constitutional offices of the Coroner, District Attorney and Clerk of Courts and the seventeen
branch court system. The County, in conjunction with the City of Madison, has developed a county-operated
consolidated public safety communications center, including enhanced 911 technologies. The juvenile court
program operates a juvenile detention center and shelter home facility.



Public Works

The Department of Public Works, Highway and Transportation maintains 542 miles of County owned roads and,
under a maintenance contract with the State, 400 miles of Interstate and State highways. Mass transit services are
provided to selected areas of Dane County through vendor contracts. The County also maintains a 1,000 stall
parking facility near the courthouse.

Health and Human Services

The Department of Human Services provides services which contribute to the self-sufficiency, treatment, care
and/or protection of persons who are developmentally disabled, mentally ill, alcohol and other drug dependent,
elderly with long-term support needs, physically disabled, as well as persons with sensory disabilities, abused and
neglected children and their families, juveniles with severe problems, and those in need of financial assistance. The
County operates a 120-bed geriatric-psychiatric care facility, situated on 100 acres of land.

Culture, Education and Recreation

The Alliant Energy Center of Dane County (the “Center”) includes 160 acres of land, a variety of multi-purpose
buildings and a parking capacity of over 4,000 cars. A 100,000 square foot exhibit hall opened for business in the
fall of 1995. The Center provides a variety of activities for the citizens of the County and neighboring counties,
including: amateur sports, concerts, trade and consumer shows, agricultural events, youth hockey, banquets,
conventions, and other activities, such as the County Fair, World Diary Expo, various festivals and other outside
events. Annual attendance at Center activities is approximately 1,050,000 persons.

The Parks Department provides for open space and recreational needs of Dane County residents through a 5,403
acre park system including 32 parks. The facilities of the zoo include a zoological park, educational exhibits and a
children’s zoo. The zoo currently exhibits approximately 800 animals representing 180 species. Educational
services are provided through University of Wisconsin extension programs and a County library system available to
all County residents.

County Airport

The Dane County Regional Airport occupies approximately 3,000 acres in the northeast section of Madison.
Significant features include a terminal building and parking facility, a system of runways, taxiways and ramps to
support aeronautical activity, a maintenance facility, general aviation facilities, air cargo facilities, air national guard
and army national guard flying units, and an industrial airpark. The terminal building was expanded from 30,000 to
90,000 square feet in 1985, to 125,000 square feet in 1991 and to 265,000 square feet in 2006. A 1,345 stall parking
ramp was opened for business in the fall of 1993 at the Airport and in 1998 was expanded by adding 482 stalls.

Proceeds from the Bonds will be used to construct a new parking facility. The facility is expected to add
approximately 1,350 new stalls and it will be located directly west of the existing structure.

The terminal building has eleven loading bridges with parking for fourteen aircraft, and commuter gate facilities to
accommodate ground boarding. The terminal building also provides space for eight on-site rental car agencies,
seven food and beverage concepts and three retail locations.

There are currently 11 airlines serving the airport with over 100 flights per day. The three primary airlines are
Northwest Airlines, United Express and American Eagle.



The following table shows the number of passengers, amount of mail, and amount of freight transported via the
airport since 2001.

Table 2
Airport Activity
Year Total Passengers Mail (Ibs.)? Freight (Ibs.)
2006 1,603,451 167 26,341,927
2005 1,611,731 208 24,180,100
2004 1,684,937 1,915 21,905,615
2003 1,597,570 241,762 25,992,585
2002 1,524,420 361,946 26,356,579
2001 1,336,251 1,346,463 26,333,947

Employee Relations and Collective Bargaining

The County employs approximately 2,100 full-time equivalent persons, approximately 1,800 of whom are
represented by eight bargaining units.

Wisconsin Statutes provide for a limited “right to strike” procedure for municipal labor organizations. This
procedure does not apply to law enforcement and fire fighting personnel. Wisconsin Statutes require a mediation-
arbitration process for Wisconsin public-employers and employee labor organizations. This process effectively
eliminates the prospect that labor and management would provide the opportunity for the right to strike to be
exercised. The County has enjoyed favorable relations with both union officials and other employees, evidenced by
the absence of any labor action in more than 20 years. The successful labor relations are based in part on the terms
of the union agreements and the labor professionals employed by the County. The agreements allow for the
existence of a grievance process wherein labor representatives meet with County management to reconcile disputes.
A bargaining committee, consisting of union officials is also authorized by contract to negotiate with the County’s
bargaining team, consisting of an outside professional labor relations attorney, Director of Administration,
Employee Relations Manager and Senior Personnel Manager.

Relationship of the County to other Political Subdivisions

Dane County includes thirty-four townships, nineteen villages, eight cities, all or a part of twenty-eight school
districts, and twenty sanitary districts. A conspicuous policy of cooperation and non-duplication of service between
the County and these local units of government is confirmed by the following examples.

1. The City and County have developed a County-operated consolidated public safety communications
center (E-911), used by all municipalities in the County.

2. A regional Emergency Medical Services System is coordinated by the County.

3. Special education programs have been transferred from the County to local school districts.

4. The County contracts with the City of Madison for the manufacture of road and street signs, radio repair,
use of telecommunications equipment, and shares with the City of Madison ownership and operation of
the City-County Building.

5. The extension of City of Madison bus service to other governmental entities has been aided by County
funding.

1 After September 11, 2001 the Dane County Regional Airport experienced an abrupt decline in mail poundage, which has
continued to the present day.



10.
11.

12.

13.

Lake management services, previously provided by the City of Madison, are now provided by the
County.

The County operates a Printing & Services Center used by over one hundred local government agencies.

Sanitary landfills and recycling programs available to all local units of government are operated by the
County.

Henry Vilas Zoo, previously operated by the City of Madison, is now owned and operated by the
County.

The County Sheriff Department is the lead agency for the Multi-Jurisdictional Drug Enforcement Group.

The County, as a member of Regional Rail Transit Commission, appropriates funds to ensure important
rail transportation services are not abandoned.

The County has developed a series of economic development summits to involve municipalities directly
with private sector resources and to encourage strategic economic growth.

The City of Madison and the County are in the process of combining their respective Public Health
agencies to create a unified “City-County Health Department.”

(The remainder of this page has been left blank intentionally.)

10



ECONOMIC AND DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

Economic Information

The County has enjoyed a stable economy over a long period of time; resources are well diversified between
government, education, trade, service, manufacturing, agriculture and construction sectors. The County is a leading
Wisconsin county for agriculture and ranks second in the State for the number of farms with 2,887 and the amount
of land used in farms with 515,475 acres. Dane County ranks first in the State for corn for grain and silage, and
chewing tobacco, and ranks high in soybeans, milk produced, and the number of cattle raised. The County’s
agriculture functions with almost no irrigation.

Dane County’s diversity of urban and rural interests and abundance of community and natural resources combine to
provide an excellent quality of life. The following demonstrate the condition of the County’s economy.
Population, Income Levels, and School Enrollments

Table 3 shows the population of the County as recorded in the United States Department of Commerce, Bureau of
the Census and the current estimate from the State of Wisconsin, Department of Administration.

Table 3
Population Statistics
Year Population
2006 464,513
2000 426,526
1990 367,085
1980 323,545
1970 290,272
1960 222,095

Per capita income data for the County, State and the U.S. for the years 2000 through 2005 are presented in the
following table.

Table 4
Per Capita Personal Income?
State of
Year Dane County Wisconsin United States
2005 not available $ 33,251 $ 34,495
2004 $ 38,448 32,157 32,937
2003 36,455 30,685 31,472
2002 35,462 29,937 30,804
2001 34,462 29,361 30,527
2000 33,534 28,573 29,847

2 Bureau of Economic Analysis; www.bea.gov
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Fall registration school enrollment data for all public and private schools within the County for the last five years
are as follows.

Table 5
School Enrollments3
Year Enrollments
2005/2006 72,829
2004/2005 4 71,222
2003/2004 73,126
2002/2003 72,764
2001/2002 72,041

Construction

Construction activity in the County is indicated by the number and construction value of building permits issued, as
set forth in the following table.

Table 6
Construction Activity

Non-Residential Construction Residential Construction
Year # of Projects Value # of Permits Value
2005 533 $ 565,000,000 5,114 $ 833,124,000
2004 495 535,000,000 5,306 841,515,000
2003 514 522,000,000 6,117 838,524,000
2002 526 468,000,000 4,335 594,029,000
2001 n.a. 421,000,000 4,435 506,292,000

Buying Income

Sales and Marketing Management’s annual “Survey of Buying Power” reports effective buying income (EBI);
results for the Madison, Wisconsin Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) are presented in Table 7 below.

Table 7
Effective Buying Income by Category (2005)
Percent of Percent of Percent of

Effective Buying Madison MSA Wisconsin United States

Income Category Households Households Households
Under $20,000 15.7% 18.8% 20.7%
$20,000-34,999 19.6% 22.3% 21.8%
$35,000-49,999 21.3% 22.6% 19.3%
$50,000 and over 43.4% 36.3% 38.2%
100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

3 Wisconsin Department of Public Instruction, www.dpi.state.wi.us
4 Changes in data collection occurred in year 2004/2005 and subsequently this year’s data is not comprehensive
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Sales Tax Collections

The following table shows the County’s sales tax collections for the last five years, and the percentage change over
the previous year.

Table 8
Sales Tax Collections

Sales Tax Percentage
Year Collections Change
2006 $ 42,507,951 4.65%
2005 40,620,232 -1.88%
2004 41,398,611 5.74%
2003 39,150,714 5.18%
2002 37,221,575 1.68%

Unemployment Statistics

The Department of Workforce Development provides estimates of the unemployment rate for Dane County and the
State of Wisconsin. Table 9 provides the average annual unemployment rate for the last five years and for
December 2006. The information presented in this table has not been seasonally adjusted.

Table 9
Unemployment Statistics
State of
Year Dane County Wisconsin
2006 ° 3.0% 4.5%
2005 3.1% 4.7%
2004 3.2% 5.0%
2003 3.6% 5.6%
2002 3.4% 5.6%
2001 2.8% 4.4%
2000 2.3% 3.4%

5 Data for December 2006 only — not seasonally adjusted
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Employment

The County’s economy is characterized by agriculture, manufacturing, wholesale and retail trade, institutional and
public-sector activity, plus office, commercial and service-oriented business. Table 10 presents employment by
selected categories within the Dane County/Madison MSA for the last five years. This data is provided in
cooperation with the Bureau of Labor Statistics, the State of Wisconsin conducts the Current Employment Statistics
(CES) survey to collect data each month on employment, hours, and earnings from a sample of nonfarm
establishments (including government).

Table 10
Employment 6

Series Description 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
Natural Resources and Mining 16,100 16,100 16,300 16,700 17,000
Manufacturing 34,300 32,800 32,200 31,900 32,300
Trade, Transportation, and Utilities 60,200 59,400 59,800 60,400 30,700
Finance and Insurance 19,600 20,900 21,800 23,300 24,500
Health Care and Social Assistance 28,300 30,100 30,000 31,100 31,700
Accommodation and Food Services 22,300 22,700 23,300 24,400 25,500
Other Services, excluding Public 14,800 15,600 15,800 17,000 17,500
Government 81,900 80,900 79,700 79,700 79,600

277,500 278,500 278,900 284,500 258,800

Major Employers

Table 11 lists the largest employers in the County as of 2005.

Table 11
Major Employers ’

Employer Product/Business Employment
State of Wisconsin Government 41,1518
Madison Metro. School District Education 5,921
U.S. Government Federal Government 4,629 9
American Family Mutual Insurance Insurance 3,700
Wisconsin Physicians Insurance Corp. Insurance 3,604
Meriter Health Services Medical Care 3,393
Dean Health Services Medical Care 3,306
City of Madison Government 3,071
Univ. of Wisconsin Medical Foundation Medical Care 3,064
Telephone and Data Systems (TDS) Communication 2,855
Dane County Government Government 2,672
CUNA Mutual Group Credit Union Insurance 2,500
St. Mary's Hospital Medical Center Medical Care 2,466
Oscar Meyer Foods (Kraft) Meat Processing 2,200

6 Wisconsin Department of Workforce Development, http://worknet.wisconsin.gov

7 Source: Greater Madison Chamber of Commerce and the Dane County Community Analysis and Planning
Division

8 Includes State of Wisconsin, University of Wisconsin, and University Hospitals

9 Includes Veterans Hospital and U.S. Postal Service
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The following financial summary presents pertinent statistics relating to property valuations as assessed in 2006 for
taxes collectible in 2007, indebtedness, population and area, and the indebtedness of overlapping governmental
units to the County. The information provided in the Financial Summary is subject in all respects to more complete
information contained in this Official Statement.

Equalized Value TID in. (January 1, 2006) $ 47,086,428,500
General Obligation Long-Term Debt (Including the Bonds) $ 220,520,033
Overlapping Debt (as of December 31, 2005) $ 1,125,020,044
Population (January 1, 2006 State Estimate) 464,513
Debt Debt as %
Per Capita of Equalized
Debt Statistics Amount (464,513) Value
Direct Debt (Levy Supported) $ 220,520,033 $ 475 0.47%
Overlapping Debt 1,125,020,044 2,422 2.39%
Total $ 1,345,540,077 $ 2,897 2.86%

(The remainder of this page has been left blank intentionally.)
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INDEBTEDNESS

General Obligation Long-Term Debt

Tables 12 below and Table 13 on the following page present the County’s general obligation long-term debt as of

April 1, 2007, and includes the Bonds.

Table 12
Outstanding General Obligation Long-Term Debt by Issue
Date of Amount Final Interest Rates Principal

Issue Type of Obligation Issued Maturity Outstanding Outstanding
09/01/1998 Refunding Bonds, Series 1998B $19,965,000  03/01/2014 4.50% - 4.80% $ 14,370,000
03/01/2001 Promissory Notes, Series 2001A 2,445,000 03/01/2011 4.10% - 4.30% 1,090,000
03/01/2001 Corporate Purpose, Series 2001B 3,030,000 03/01/2021 4.25% - 4.50% 2,370,000
12/01/2002 G.O. Bonds, Series 2002A 30,125,000 06/01/2022 3.25% - 5.00% 20,720,000
12/01/2002 G.0. Bonds, Series 2002B (Airport) 29,445,000 06/01/2014 5.00% 24,225,000
12/01/2002 Taxable G.O. Bonds, Series 2002C 14,175,000 12/01/2022 3.70% - 5.85% 13,335,000
12/01/2002 Taxable G.O. Bonds, Series 2002D 4,970,000 12/01/2012 5.15% 4,970,000
07/01/2003 G.O. Bonds, Series 2003A 28,480,000 06/01/2023 2.00% - 5.00% 25,855,000
07/01/2003 G.0. Bonds, Series 2003B (Airport) 25,265,000 06/01/2023 3.50% - 4.75% 25,265,000
07/01/2003 Promissory Notes, Series 2003C 15,075,000 06/01/2013 2.125%-3.300% 9,545,000
11/01/2004 G.O. Bonds Series 2004A 7,185,000 06/01/2024 2.250%-4.375% 6,225,000
11/01/2004 Refunding Notes, Series 2004B 3,480,000 06/01/2009 2.75% - 3.00% 2,460,000
03/15/2005 State Trust Fund Loan 282,500 03/15/2010 3.50% 140,033
07/01/2005 G.O. Bonds, Series 2005A 14,260,000 06/01/2025 3.25% - 4.30% 13,630,000
02/15/2006 Promissory Notes, Series 2006A 9,200,000 06/01/2015 4.00% 9,200,000
02/15/2006 Refunding Bonds, Series 2006B 17,780,000 09/01/2025 4.000%-4.375% 17,780,000
04/01/2007 G.O. Bonds, Series 2007A (Airport) 29,340,000 06/01/2017 4.00% 29,340,000

Total $ 220,520,033

(The remainder of this page has been left blank intentionally.)
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Table 13
Annual Maturity Schedule
(as of April 1, 2007 and includes the Bonds)

Outstanding G.O. Debt This Issue Total
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Debt Service
2007 $ 14,886,233 $ 8,206,649 -- $ 782,400 $ 23,875,282
2008 14,626,233 7,660,593 $ 2,465,000 1,124,300 25,876,126
2009 13,604,400 7,123,733 2,555,000 1,023,900 24,307,033
2010 13,444,400 6,591,140 2,655,000 919,700 23,610,240
2011 14,185,000 6,009,770 2,755,000 811,500 23,761,270
2012 19,075,000 5,422,431 2,855,000 699,300 28,051,731
2013 14,470,000 4,550,868 2,965,000 582,900 22,568,768
2014 13,665,000 3,924,046 3,080,000 462,000 21,131,046
2015 8,100,000 3,432,704 3,205,000 336,300 15,074,004
2016 7,260,000 3,089,132 3,335,000 205,500 13,889,632
2017 7,615,000 2,752,853 3,470,000 69,400 13,907,253
2018 7,985,000 2,393,578 -- -- 10,378,578
2019 8,385,000 2,008,180 -- -- 10,393,180
2020 8,800,000 1,593,226 -- -- 10,393,226
2021 8,900,000 1,155,038 -- -- 10,055,038
2022 9,140,000 713,246 -- -- 9,853,246
2023 6,060,000 296,808 -- -- 6,356,808
2024 1,740,000 116,734 -- -- 1,856,734
2025 1,475,000 47,621 -- -- 1,522,621
Total 193,416,267 67,088,347 29,340,000 7,017,200 296,861,814
Payments made
by 4/1/2007 (2,236,233) (832,517) -- -- (3,068,750)
Total $191,180,033 $66,255,831 $29,340,000 $7,017,200 $293,793,064

(The remainder of this page has been left blank intentionally.)
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Short-Term Debt

The County does not issue short-term debt for operational purposes.

Overlapping Debt

There are many taxing jurisdictions within the County which have general obligation debt outstanding. Table 14 sets
forth the general obligation debt for those jurisdictions and the amount of their debt allocable to the County as of
December 31, 2005.

Table 14
Overlapping Debt

Outstanding Net

Taxing District Debt Within County

School Districts $ 507,616,303
Cities 393,732,261
Villages 132,998,573
Sanitary Districts 68,708,868
Towns 21,964,039
Total Overlapping Debt $ 1,125,020,044

Debt Trends

The trend of net direct debt (i.e. property tax supported debt) and overlapping debt as of December 31 for the years
2000 through 2005 is contained in Table 15 below.

Table 15
Net Direct and Net Indirect Debt

Net Direct Overlapping Total Net Direct
Year County Debt County Debt and Overlapping Debt
2005 $ 123,480,661 $1,125,020,044 $1,248,500,705
2004 122,156,850 1,044,870,815 1,167,027,665
2003 133,849,641 957,863,218 1,091,712,859
2002 134,904,521 823,631,251 958,535,772
2001 65,620,990 803,631,251 869,252,241
2000 67,039,101 743,667,469 810,706,570
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Debt Ratios

Table 16 shows the County’s outstanding general obligation direct and indirect debt as a percentage of equalized value
and per capita for the years 2001 through 2006.

Table 16
Outstanding Debt Per Capita and
As a Percent of Equalized Valuation

Net Direct County Debt Net Direct and Overlapping Debt
% of Equalized Per % of Equalized Per

Year Population  Equalized Valuel0 Valuation Capita Valuation Capita

2006 464,513 $47,086,428,500 0.26% $ 266 2.65% $2,688
2005 458,297 42,799,728,500 0.29% 267 2.73% 2,546
2004 450,730 38,538,686,600 0.35% 297 2.83% 2,422
2003 445,253 34,696,825,100 0.39% 303 2.76% 2,153
2002 438,881 32,050,119,700 0.20% 150 2.71% 1,981
2001 431,815 29,373,916,900 0.23% 155 2.76% 1,877

Legal Debt Limit

The County has the power to incur indebtedness for County purposes specified by statute (Article 11 Section 3 of the
Wisconsin Constitution and Chapter 67, Wisconsin Statutes) in an aggregate amount, not exceeding five percent of the
equalized value of taxable property in the County, as last determined by the State of Wisconsin Department of Revenue.
In general, such indebtedness may be in the form of bonds and promissory notes for various public purposes.

The County’s unused borrowing capacity after issuance of the Bonds will be as follows.

2006 Equalized Value $ 47,086,428,500
Legal Debt Limit (5% of Equalized Value) 2,354,321,425
Debt Outstanding (9.4% of Capacity) 220,520,033
Remaining borrowing capacity (90.6% of Capacity) $2133.801.392

No Default on County Indebtedness

The County has never defaulted on any of its prior or outstanding indebtedness.

Future Financings

The County anticipates issuing general obligation bonds later in 2007 to finance capital improvement projects.

10 Tax Increment District (TID) values included
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Financial Reports

The County’s accounts are independently audited. Excerpts from the audit for the year ended December 31, 2005 are
attached hereto as Appendix A. Copies of prior audits are available upon request from the County. A comparative
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance for the General Fund for years 2003 to 2005 is
presented below.

Table 17
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance for the General Fund

(Years Ended December 31)

20

2003 2004 2005
Revenues
Taxes 116,526,358 121,863,441 124,554,482
Intergovernmental 23,143,231 25,206,273 22,902,356
Public Charges for Services 16,088,498 16,271,223 15,275,482
Fines, Forfeitures and Penalties 2,176,795 2,227,519 2,145,341
Licenses and Permits 830,360 909,497 918,960
Investment Income 1,013,716 1,060,697 2,507,950
Miscellaneous 4,648,941 4,764,028 4,741,217
Total Revenues 164,427,899 172,302,678 173,045,788
Expenditures

General Government 21,408,171 21,053,001 22,171,120
Health and Human Services 403,515 405,677 397,978
Public Safety and Criminal Justice 70,218,666 71,817,589 77,015,660
Public Works 1,143,869 895,436 855,549
Culture, Education and Recreation 12,382,709 12,616,329 13,872,611
Conservation and Economic Development 4,601,236 4,590,537 4,050,274
Capital Outlay 1,359,571 2,863,432 1,501,800
Total Expenditures 111,517,737 114,242,001 119,864,992
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 52,910,162 58,060,677 53,180,796
Other Financing Sources (Uses) (51,533,950) (51,535,363) (50,977,758)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other

Financing Sources Over Expenditures and Other

Financing Uses 1,376,212 6,525,314 2,203,038
Fund Balance - January 1 18,898,734 20,274,946 26,800,260
Fund Balance - December 31 20,274,946 26,800,260 29,003,298




Budgeting

All County departments are required to submit their annual budget requests for the ensuing year to the County
Executive by July 31. The Department of Administration reviews the requests in detail with the departments during
September.

After all of the requests have been reviewed the County Executive submits a proposed Executive Budget to the County
Board of Supervisors. The County Ordinances require that this be done on or before October 1. The Board of
Supervisors completes its review and adopts the budget on or before December 1 to ensure that property tax bills can be
furnished to property tax payers in a timely manner so as to allow for their payment prior to December 31 if the
taxpayer so chooses.

County policy requires that budgeted revenues and appropriations for the ensuing year be established on a modified
accrual basis of accounting, controlled within individual agencies except for certain agencies which are controlled by
individual programs and/or groups of programs, within the agency, and are monitored by an annual appropriation and
encumbrance system. Budgeted revenues and appropriations are approved by the County Board of Supervisors.
Budget is defined as the originally approved budget, plus or minus approved revisions.

Supplemental budget appropriations may be made from unanticipated revenues received or fund equity, as defined by
state statutes, adopted by two-thirds approval of the County Board of Supervisors. Management can expend funds
within individual agencies or programs, as appropriated, without approval of the County Board of Supervisors.
Budgets for the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted
accounting principal (GAAP).

Investments

The County has adopted a formal investment policy which delegates authority to the County Treasurer to invest money
of the County, to sell or exchange securities purchased and to provide for the safekeeping of such securities.

State statutes authorize the County to invest in obligations of the United States Treasury, U.S. government agencies and
instrumentalities, obligations of Wisconsin governmental units, time deposits with maturities of less than three years in
any financial institution in Wisconsin governmental units, time deposits with maturities of less than three years in any
financial institution in Wisconsin, the State of Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool, the Wisconsin
Investment Trust and any security maturing in seven years or less and having the highest or second highest rating
category of a nationally recognized rating agency. The County only deposits and invests its monies in investments
allowed by State Statute.

All investments in financial institutions are insured to $100,000 by federal depository insurance, and are guaranteed by
the State up to $400,000 for each depository, for losses incurred, subject to the availability of funds in the State’s
Deposit Guarantee Fund (the State is not currently replenishing this Fund).

A description of investment practices and investments at year-end 2005 is included in Appendix A in the Notes to
Financial Statements. A summary of the market value of the County’s investments as of December 31, 2006 is
presented below.

Table 18
Dane County Investments
State Investment Pool $ 53,496,411
Repurchase Agreements 3,158,771
Demand Deposits and Cash 31,437,310
Total $ 88,092,492
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PROPERTY VALUATIONS AND TAXES

Tax Assessment

The valuation of all real and personal property is the responsibility of the City and Village assessors within the County
with the exception of real and personal manufacturing property. The equalized value of each county is the sum of the
evaluations of all cities, villages, and towns within its boundaries. The valuation of manufacturing property is the
responsibility of the Wisconsin Department of Revenue.

Assessments are made as of January 1% of each year in accordance with the provisions of Wisconsin Statutes. The
Department of Revenue notifies each county and taxing jurisdiction of its equalized value on August 15; school districts
are notified on October 15. The law requires that all property subject to assessment be valued in accordance with
procedures set forth in the Wisconsin Property Assessment Manual. Assessments must be based on actual view or from
the best information that the assessor can practicably obtain, and be at the full value which could ordinarily be obtained
at private sale.

Wisconsin courts have determined that the constitutional requirement for uniformity of assessment is met even though
the assessment in question may be less than full value, provide all property within the tax district is assessed at the same
proximate level. Beginning in 1986, all municipalities were required to assess taxable property at a minimum of 90
percent of State equalized values at least once every five years.

The assessment of a class of property may also be lowered to obtain uniformity. This procedure is also utilized by the
Wisconsin Department of Revenue to equate full value assessments of manufacturing property to the local level of all
taxable non-manufacturing assessments.

The State of Wisconsin equalizes local assessments to full values. This equalized valuation is the basis used in
computing the five percent State constitutional debt limitation.

Table 19 shows the total equalized value trends for the County for the past five years.

Table 19
Property Value Trends!!
Real Estate Personal Property Total Property
Year Equalized Value Equalized Value Equalized Value
2006 $ 45,953,247,700 $1,133,180,800 $47,086,428,500
2005 41,705,583,500 1,094,145,000 42,799,728,500
2004 37,496,760,200 1,041,926,400 38,538,686,600
2003 33,702,155,800 994,669,300 34,696,825,100
2002 31,011,047,100 1,039,072,600 32,050,119,700

11 Tax Increment District (TID) values included
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Table 20 breaks down Dane County’s total equalized value as of January 1, 2006 by category.

Table 20
2006 Equalized Value by Category?!?
2006 Percent of
Equalized Value Total Value
Residential $ 33,449,959,100 71.0%
Commercial 10,740,215,000 22.8%
Manufacturing 785,481,500 1.7%
Agriculture 100,047,500 0.2%
Undeveloped 52,822,800 0.1%
Ag Forest 92,311,700 0.2%
Forest 56,332,700 0.1%
Other 676,077,400 1.4%
Personal Property 1,133,180,800 2.4%
Total $ 47,086,428,500 100.0%

Levy Limits

Section 66.77 Wis. Stats., imposed a property tax rate limit on Wisconsin counties, effective August 12, 1993.
Separate limits were imposed for operating levy rates and the debt service levy rates. Initially, the baseline for the rate
limit was the 1992 actual tax rate adopted for 1993 budget purposes. The County may not exceed this operating levy
rate and debt levy rate limits unless one or more specified conditions apply, as described below. The statute establishes
specific penalties for failure to meet the limit requirements. Among the penalties for exceeding the limits are reductions
in state shared revenues and transportation aids.

Operating Budget Levy Rate

The property tax rate established for general County operating purposes as part of the 1993 adopted budget was
approximately $4.08 per $1,000 of equalized value (including regional planning and other administrative levies). The
only conditions under which the maximum rate may be increased are if services are transferred between governmental
units (transfers to other governmental units reduced the maximum rate) or if a referendum is approved by a majority of
local electors to allow the maximum rate to be increased. An operating property tax rate of approximately $1.99 per
$1,000 of equalized value was established for the County’s 2007 general purpose budget.

Debt Service Levy Rate

The County adopted a debt levy rate of approximately $1.42 per $1,000 of equalized value as part of the 1993 budget.
The conditions under which the debt service rate may be increased include: approval of issuance of debt at a
referendum, adoption of a resolution by the County Board of Supervisors which sets forth its “reasonable expectation”
that the issuance of the debt will not result in an increase in the tax rate, actual authorization of the debt prior to the
August 12, 1993 effective date of the rate limit, issuance of debt for regional projects as described in Section
67.05(7)(f), Wisconsin Statutes, issuance of debt to refund outstanding municipal obligations, or, adoption of a
resolution to issue debt which is approved by a % vote of the members-elect of the County Board. In conformance with
the conditions outlined above, the County levied a debt levy rate $0.244 per $1,000 of equalized value for the 2007
budget.

12 Tax Increment District (TID) values included
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Property Tax Credits

School Tax Credit — Wisconsin Statutes provide for a school tax credit which is a direct payment by the State to the
municipalities. This tax credit is used to reduce the public schools tax levy reflected on individual property tax bills.

Lottery Tax Credit — Wisconsin Statutes provide for a lottery tax credit financed with proceeds from the state lottery.
This tax credit is also shown on individual property tax bills.

Homestead Credit — Wisconsin Statutes provide for a Homestead Credit. Indirectly related to property taxes, this is a
direct claim by the taxpayer to the State whereby household with income of less than $24,500 may qualify for a State
income tax credit. This credit is based on the amount of property taxes paid. Renters are also eligible for this credit.

Property Tax Collections and Other Major County Revenues

Property Tax

Real estate and personal property taxes become due as of January 31 of each year. Taxpayers may pay their property
taxes in installments. The number of installment payments varies for each individual municipality. Municipalities
initially collect all property taxes including county and school taxes. On or before January 15 and February 15, the City
or Village treasurer settles with other taxing jurisdictions including the County for all collections through December
and January respectively. In municipalities which have authorized the payment of real property taxes in three or more
installments, the City or Village Treasurer additionally settles with the other taxing jurisdictions including the County
on the 15" day of each month following the month in which an installment payment is required. The County
subsequently has a tax settlement with the municipalities in August of each year. The County exclusively purchases all
uncollected real property taxes from the municipality, issues a tax certificate and assumes the collection responsibility.
As a last resort, the County Treasurer can foreclose after approximately two years. Tax liens are the first liens against
real estate and remain valid for eleven years.

State Shared Revenues

The State of Wisconsin distributes revenues collected from state taxes to municipal and county governments. These
revenues can be used at the discretion of local governments to finance local services. Sections 79.03 and 79.04 of
Wisconsin Statutes outline a formula to allocate these revenues to local government units. The allocation formula for
counties is based on a number of variables including taxable property values, utility property values, population,
property tax levies and certain user fees. Shared revenue payments are made by the State on the fourth Monday in July
(15%) and the third Monday in November (85%). The 2007 Adopted Budget includes $4,182,647 million in
anticipated State Shared Revenues.

County Sales and Use Tax

Beginning April 1, 1991, a 0.5% percent sales and use tax was enacted by Dane County. The tax, which is authorized
under Section 77.70 of Wisconsin Statutes, is administered by the State of Wisconsin and is imposed on goods and
services which are currently subject to a 5.0 percent state sales tax. The State distributes payments to the County seven
to eleven weeks after the taxes are collected by retailers.

The County’s property tax collections, including collections for the County and all other local taxing authorities in the
County, for the previous five years are summarized in Table 21.
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Year
2005
2004
2003
2002
2001

Year
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003

Taxpayer

Madison Joint Venture
American Family Insurance
Epic Systems

Greenway Office Center
Covance Laboratories
University Research Park
Greenway Center LLC
University Research Park Inc
General Casualty

Wingra Building Group
Total - Top 10 Taxpayers

Total - Dane County 2006

Table 21

Property Tax Levies and Collections

Collected First Year

Tax Levy Amount Percent
$ 775,620,038 $ 771,731,855 99.50%
731,298,367 728,190,120 99.57%
681,382,484 678,211,750 99.53%
638,806,863 635,653,401 99.51%
601,404,211 597,745,581 99.39%

Table 22
County Property and Sales Taxes
Budgeted Budgeted Total
Property County Sales Budgeted
Tax Levy Tax Levy County Taxes
$ 110,172,695 $42,992,110 $ 153,164,805
105,045,958 42,867,110 147,913,068
100,806,058 42,548,000 143,354,058
97,456,418 39,687,000 137,143,418
92,948,455 39,553,300 132,501,755

Table 23
Largest Taxpayers

Nature of Business

Shopping Centers

Insurance

Medical Software

Office Buildings

Research

Research & Technology Park
Retail Stores

Research & Technology Park
Insurance

Property Management
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Total County taxes, as a sum of property tax levies and County sales tax, budgeted for the last five years are shown
below.

The ten largest taxpayers in the County based on January 1, 2006 Equalized Values are found in Table 23.

Percent of Total

2006 Equalized
Equalized Value Valuation
$ 182,399,500 0.39%

157,914,200 0.34%
116,992,600 0.25%
91,792,900 0.19%
67,714,000 0.14%
61,589,700 0.13%
51,298,600 0.11%
46,666,800 0.10%
40,423,800 0.09%
40,100,900 0.09%
856,893,000 1.82%

47,086,428,500




LEGAL MATTERS

Pending Litigation

There is no pending litigation or, to the knowledge of the Dane County Corporation Counsel’s Office, threatened
litigation, which would restrain or enjoin the issuance, sale, execution or delivery of the Bonds or in any way contest or
affect the validity of the Bonds or of any proceedings of the County taken with respect to the issuance and sale of the
Bonds.

There are various pending cases against Dane County which involve claims for monetary damages. Some of these
claims are uninsured. It is the opinion of the Dane County Corporation Counsel’s Office, however, that these pending
cases are not unusual in number and amount. Based upon past experience in similar matters, the Dane County
Corporation Counsel’s Office does not believe these cases will have a material adverse effect on the financial position
of the County.

Approval of Legal Proceedings

Certain legal matters incident to the authorization and issuance of the Bonds are subject to the approval of Quarles &
Brady LLP, Bond Counsel, whose approving legal opinion will be available at the time of the delivery of the Bonds.
The proposed form of such opinion is attached hereto as Appendix B. Bond Counsel has not participated in the
preparation of this Official Statement, except for guidance concerning the sections entitled “LEGAL MATTERS - Tax
Exemption” and will not pass upon its accuracy, completeness or sufficiency. Bond Counsel has not examined nor
attempted to examine or verify any of the financial or statistical statements or data contained in the Official Statement,
and will express no opinion with respect thereto.

See Appendix B “Legal Opinion” for the Bonds.

Tax Exemption

Quarles & Brady LLP, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, Bond Counsel, will deliver a legal opinion with respect to the federal
income tax exemption applicable to the interest on the Bonds under existing law in substantially the following form:

"The interest on the Bonds is excludable for federal income tax purposes from the gross income of the
owners of the Bonds. The interest on the Bonds is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the
federal alternative minimum tax imposed by Section 55 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the “Code™) on corporations (as that term is defined for federal income tax purposes) and
individuals. However, for purposes of computing the alternative minimum tax imposed on
corporations, the interest on the Bonds is included in adjusted current earnings. The Code contains
requirements that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds in order for interest on the
Bonds to be or continue to be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes. Failure
to comply with certain of those requirements could cause the interest on the Bonds to be included in
gross income retroactively to the date of issuance of the Bonds. The Village has agreed to comply
with all of those requirements. The opinion set forth in the first sentence of this paragraph is subject
to the condition that the Village complies with those requirements. We express no opinion regarding
other federal tax consequences arising with respect to the Bonds."

The interest on the Bonds is not exempt from present Wisconsin income or franchise taxes.
Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should be aware that ownership of the Bonds may result in collateral federal
income tax consequences to certain taxpayers. Bond Counsel will not express any opinion as to such collateral tax

consequences. Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult their tax advisors as to collateral federal income tax
consequences.
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From time to time, legislation is proposed which, if enacted, could alter one or more of the federal tax matters referred
to above or would adversely affect the market value of the Bonds. It cannot be predicted whether or in what form any
of such proposals may be enacted and whether, if enacted, such proposals will apply to bonds (such as the Bonds)
issued prior to enactment.

Not Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations

The County will not designate the Bonds as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” for purposes of Section 265(b)(3)
relating to the ability of financial institutions to deduct from income for Federal income tax purposes, interest expense
that is allocable to carrying and acquiring tax-exempt obligations.

Original Issue Premium

To the extent that the initial offering prices of certain of the Bonds are more than the principal amount payable at
maturity, such Bonds (“Premium Bonds”) will be considered to have bond premium.

Any Premium Bond purchased in the initial offering at the issue price will have “amortizable bond premium” within the
meaning of Section 171 of the Code. The amortizable bond premium of each Premium Bond is calculated on a daily
basis from the issue date of such Premium Bond until its stated maturity date (or call date, if any) on the basis of a
constant instant rate compounded at each accrual period (with straight line interpolation between the compounding
dates). An owner of a Premium Bond that has amortizable bond premium is not allowed any deduction for the
amortizable bond premium; rather the amortizable bond premium attributable to a taxable year is applied against (and
operates to reduce) the amount of tax-exempt interest payments on the Premium Bonds. During each taxable year, such
an owner must reduce his or her tax basis in such Premium Bond by the amount of the amortizable bond premium that
is allocable to the portion of such taxable year during which the holder held such Premium Bond. The adjusted tax
basis in a Premium Bond will be used to determine taxable gain or loss upon a disposition (for example, upon a sale,
exchange, redemption, or payment at maturity) of such Premium Bond.

Owners of Premium Bonds who did not purchase such Premium Bonds in the initial offering at the issue price should
consult their own tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences of owning such Premium Bonds.

Owners of Premium Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the state and local tax consequences of
owning the Premium Bonds.

MISCELLANEOUS

Ratings

The Bonds are rated “Aaa” by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. and “AAA” by Fitch Ratings. A rating reflects only the
view of the rating organization and explanations of the significance of such rating may be obtained from the rating
agency furnishing the same. There is no assurance that such rating will continue for any given period of time or that it
will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by such rating agency, if in the judgment of such rating agency
circumstances so warrant. Any such downward revision or withdrawal of such rating may have an adverse effect on the
market price of the Bonds.

Underwriting
First Southwest Company (the “Underwriter”) has agreed to purchase the Bonds from the County. The Underwriter’s
compensation in connection with the Bonds is $43,327.49. The Underwriter will be obligated to purchase all such

Bonds if any such Bonds are purchased. The Underwriter may offer and sell the Bonds to certain dealers (including
dealers depositing the Bonds into investment trusts) as prices lower than the offering prices set forth on the cover page.
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Financial Advisor

The County has retained Public Financial Management, Inc., of Milwaukee, Wisconsin, as financial advisor (the
“Financial Advisor”) in connection with the issuance of the Bonds. In preparing the Official Statement, the Financial
Advisor has relied upon governmental officials, and other sources, which have access to relevant data to provide
accurate information for the Official Statement, and the Financial Advisor has not been engaged, nor has it undertaken,
to independently verify the accuracy of such information. The Financial Advisor is not a public accounting firm and
has not been engaged by the County to compile, review, examine or audit any information in the Official Statement in
accordance with accounting standards. The Financial Advisor is an independent advisory firm and is not engaged in
the business of underwriting, trading or distributing municipal securities or other public securities and therefore will not
participate in the underwriting of the Bonds.

Requests for information concerning the County should be addressed to Public Financial Management, Inc., 115 South
84" Street, Suite 100, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53214 (414/771-2700).

Certificates Concerning Official Statement

Concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds, the County Executive of the County will deliver to the purchasers of the
Bonds a certificate stating, that, to the best of her knowledge, the Official Statement did not as of its date and as of the
sale date and does not, as of the date of delivery of the Bonds, contain an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact required to be included therein for the purpose for which the Official Statement is to be used or
necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made not misleading.

By Kathleen M. Falk
County Executive
Dane County, Wisconsin
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COUNTY OF DANE

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
Cacomber 31, 2005

ASSETS
Cash and investments

Reaceivables {net of allowance for uncollectibles)

Taxes
Delinqueant taxes
Accounts
Loans
Other
Due from other governmental units
Intermal balances
Inventorles
Internal advances
Prepald items
Deposits
Restricted Assets
Temporarily Restricted
Cash and investments
Deposit with Wisconsin Municipal
Mutual Insurance Co.
Other agsets
Capital Assets
Land
Construction in progress
Land Improvements (non-depreciable)
Land Improvements (depreciable)
Buildings
Zoo animals
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and payroil taxes
Other accrued liabilities and depaosits

Due to other governmental units
Uneamegd revenue
Noncurrent Liabilities
Due within one year
Dus in more than one year
Total Liabllitles
NET ASSETS

invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Reslricted for:
Health services
Library operations
Improvement of land information
Construction or repairs to bridges and culverts
CDBG
HOME
Grant funding procesds
Trust activities - expendable
Capital projacts
Landfill long-term care costs
2o exhibits
Housing programs
Unrastrietad (daficit)

TOTAL NET ASSETS

Primary Govemment
Buslness-

Governmental type Component

Activities Activitios Totals Units
$ 57681620 $ 43,659,232 $ 101,350,852 & 4,382,118
100,856,440 4,180,823 105,037,263 -
7420317 - 7,420,317 -
3,082,427 3,649,783 6,732,210 1,915,255
4,259,605 - 4,259,605 193,903
706,834 - 706,834 3,514
16,577,680 2,877,048 19,454,728 28,438
(98,048) 98,048 - .
- 1,549,106 1,549,106 123,355
{573,536) 573,536 - -
19,107 80,329 99,436 5,270
50,000 - 50,000 -
- 11,484,731 11,484,731 162,805
1,809,171 - 1,808,171 -
301,462 371,956 673,418 -
63,5354 29,043,177 92,578,648 1,197,431
1,448,914 16,804,219 18,343,133 29,907
28,472,599 - 28,472,595 -
8,669,835 106,756,221 116,426,056 -
142,965,779 110,812,023 253,777,802 $,824.604
369,205 - 369,205 -
20,168,598 37,034,057 57,203,565 335,703
88,343,761 . 88,343,761 -
{81,611,313) (79.819,733) (161,631,046) {5,124,973)
465,265928 289,245,456 754,511,384 9,077,330
10,891,164 2837456 13,728,620 1,495,301
4,857,704 1,004,367 5,862,071 -
6,082,995 355,312 6,438,307 53,8623
6,801,502 1,216,831 8,108,423 7.083
102,937,323 4,282,286 107,219,708 237,209
18,467,853 4,888,364 23,356,247 50,708
147,421,673 64,513,094 _ 211,934,767 337,498
297,550,334 79,097,810 376,648,144 2,181,822
174,670,044 164,138,875 338,808,419 1,935,245
1,003,039 - 1,003,039 -
35,579 - 35,579 “
1,406,558 - 1,406,558 -
169,807 - 169,697 -
1,529,532 - 1,529,532 -
1,118,840 - 1,118,840 -
5734 - 573,491 -
436,052 - 436,052 -
- 6,485,426 6,485,426 -
- 41,149 41,149 . -
- - - 2,218,945
- - - 284,400
{13,227.438) 39,482,198 26,254,758 2457118

$ 167,715594 § 210,147,646 $ 377,863,240 $ 6,895,708

See accompanylng notes to financial statements.
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COUNTY OF DANE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005

Eunctions/Programs
Primary Government
Governmental Activities
General government
Health and human services
Public safety and criminal justice
Public works
Culture, education and recreation
Conservation and economic development
Interest and fiscal charges
Total Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities

Airport

Highway

Sanitary landfill

Badger Prairie Health Care Center
Printing and services - non-major fund
Methane gas - non-major fund

Total Business-type Activilies
Total Primary Government

Component Units

Henry Vilas Park Zoological Society, inc.
Dane Ceunty Housing Authority

Total Component Units

Program Revenues
Operating Capital

Charges for Grants and Grants and

___Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
$ 22871,308 § 4865758 & 5,185,803 § -
200,734,092 5,264,621 148,009,181 -
80,838,195 7.517,004 7,145,673 605,848
6,097,457 T17.347 148,096 7,093,388
19,648,299 9,091,937 220,124 1,542,788
9,109,179 1,921,977 5,237,693 594,249
5,077,733 - - .
344,376,263 29,368,654 165,946,570 9,836,271
18,889,923 13,744,945 10,725 25,768,338
17,397,795 11,706,327 3,854,742 -
8,280,434 6,930,381 - -
13,810,658 6,002,735 961,725 -
918,650 895,462 19,725 -
461,641 1,302,575 - -
59,759,101 40,582,425 4,845,917 25,768,338
$ 404,135,364 $ 69,951,079 $§ 170,793487 § 35,604,609
2,806,232 1,108,493 - 2,436,487
8,889,218 637,687 8,080,861 -
$ 11,605,448 § 1,746,180 $ 8,080,861 % 2,436,487

General Revenues
Taxes

Property laxes, levied for general purposes
Property taxes, levied for debt service
Property taxes, levied for highway purposes

Sales taxes
Other taxes

Intergovernmenial revenues not restricted to

specific programs
Public gifts and/or grants
investment income
Gain on the sale of assets
Miscellaneous
Transfers

Total General Revenues and Transfers

Change in Net Assets

NET ASSETS - Beginning (as restated)

NET ASSETS - ENDING
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Net (Expense) Revenue and

Changes in Net Assets

Primary Govemment
Governmental  Business-type Component
Activities Activities Totals Units

$ (12819.737) §

$ (12819737) $

(47,470,290} - {47,470,290) -
(65.569,670) - (65,569,670) -
1,861,374 - 1,861,374 -
{8,793,452) - (8,793,452) .
(1,355,260 - (1,355,260) .
(5,077,733) - (5.077,733) -
(139,224,768) - _{139,224,768) .
- 20,634,085 20,634,085 -

- (1,836,726)  (1,836,726) .

- (1,350,053) (1,360,053) -

- (6,846,198)  (6,846,198) .

- (3,463) (3,463) -

- 840,934 840,934 -

- 11,438,579 11,438,579 -
(139,224,768) 11,433,579  (127,786,189) -
- - - 738,748

. . . (170,668)
86,318,786 - 86,318,786 .
9,979,192 - 9,979,192 .

- 4,490,824 4,499,824 -
40,620,232 - 40,620,232 -
4,656,050 . 4,656,050 .
5,783,147 - 5,783,147 .
427,710 - 427,710 -
3,666,737 1,493,860 5,160,597 73,300

- 7,531 7,531 .

564,572 331,551 896,123 782,917
(3,702,394) 3,702,394 - -
148,314,032 __ 10,035160 _ 158349192 856,316
9,080,264 21473730 30,563,003 1,424,396
158,626,330 __ 188,673,907 _ 347,300237 _ 5471312

$ 167715594 §$ 210147646 $ 377,963,240 § 65895,708

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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COUNTY OF DANE

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31, 2005

ASSETS

Cash and investments
Receivables

Taxes

Delinquent laxes

Accounts

Loans

Other
Due fram other governments
Cue from other funds
Prepaid items

Total Assels

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll and payroll taxes

Other accrued liabilities and deposits

Due to other governments

Due to other funds

Deferred ravenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Reserved for:
Encumbrances
Prepald items
MNon-county levy portion of
delinquent taxes receivable
Long-lerm receivables
Debt service
Trusl activitles
Urweserved and designated, reported in:
General fund
Unreserved and undesignaled, reporied In;
General fund
Special revenue funds
Capital projects fund
Tolal Fund Balances

Tolal Liabilities and Fund Balances

Amounls reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are differend because:

Capital assets used in governmental funds are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reporied in the funds. See Note ILLA.

Some receivables that are not currenlly available are reported as deferred revenue in the fund financial
statements but are recognized as revenue when eamed in the government-wide statements.

Internal service funds are reporied in the statement of net assets as governmental funds

Some labilities, including long-term debt, are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not

reporied in the furis. See Note ILA.

Other Total
Human Capital Governmental  Governmental

General Services Debt Service Projecls Funds Funds
$ 21464540 § 3167842 $ 588231 § 22232192 § 3537814 § 50990619
83,097,335 - 10,964,040 - 6,795,085 100,856,440
7,420,317 - - - - 7.420,317
1,886,252 295,470 - - 21,955 2,213,377
- - - - 4,259,605 4,259,605
706,834 . - - - 706,834
9,791,182 5,760,567 - 298,150 723,098 16,572,897
- - - - 250,616 250,616
8,203 10,427 - - 150 18,780
§ 124384663 $ 9234000 $ 11552271 § 22530342 § 15588303 § 183,289,585
$ 1837740 § 5632695 § - $ 2688538 $§ 647,882 § 10,807,055
3,722,225 878,726 - - 202,444 4,803,394
1,239,002 - - - - 1,239,002
2,853,420 2,542,496 - 75,937 1,419,603 6,891,456
89,410 6,798 - - 251,664 347,872
85,639,588 - 10,964,040 214,202 9,979,670 106,797,480
95,381,365 9,060,914 10,964,040 2,978,677 12,501,263 130,886,259
$66,096 - - 2,776,535 1,689,868 5.032.409
8,203 10,427 - - - 18,630
4,118,326 - - - - 4,118,328
688,761 - - - - 688,761
- - 588,231 - - 588,231
- - - - 436,052 436,052
8,942,166 - - - - 8,942,166
14,679,746 - - - - 14,679,746
- 162,665 - - 961,120 1,123,785
- - - 18,775,130 - 16,775,130
29,003,298 173,002 588,231 19,561 665 3,087,040 52,403,326

$ 124384663 $ 9234006 $ 11552271 $ 22530342 $ 15588303

271,458,242
3,860,157
6,434,396
166,440,527

NET ASSETS OF GOYERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

$ 167715594
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CQUNTY OF DANE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005

REVENUES
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Public charges for services
Fines, forfeitures and penalties
Licenses and permits
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
General government
Health and human services
Public safety and criminal justice
Public works
Culture, education and recreation

Conservation and economic development

Capital Qutiay

Debt Service
Principal retirement
Interest and fees

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under} expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SQURCES {USES)
General obligation debt issued
Debt premium
Capital lease
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources {Uses)

Nat Change in Fund Balance

FUND BALANCES - Beginning (as restated)

FUND BALANCES - ENDING

Other Total
Human Capital Governmental  Governmental

General Senvices Debt Service Projects Funds Funds
$124,554,482 3 - § 9979192 §$ - 3§ 6,984,611 § 141,518,285
22,902,356 145,883,383 - 722,847 5,263,321 174,771,907
15,275,482 149,277 - 1,072,629 770,091 17,267,479
2.145.341 - - - - 2,145,341
918,560 - - - 964 467 1,883,427
2,507,950 - 812,043 - - 3,319,993
4,741,217 4,035,249 1,554,848 - 154,693 10,486,007
173,045,788 150,067,908 12,346,083 1,795,476 14,137,183 351,392,439
22.171,120 - - - - 22,171,120
397,978 194,170,746 - - 5,505,717 200,074,441
77.015,660 - - - - 77,015,660
855,549 - - - 147,331 1,002,880
13,872,611 - - - 3,619,662 17,492,273
4,050,274 - - - 5,648,547 9,698,821
1,501,800 2,085 - 19,214,885 17,006 20,735,756
- - 12,095,295 - - 12,095,295
- - 5,585,862 - - 5,585,862
119,864,992 194,172,811 17,881,157 19,214,885 14,938,263 365,872,108
53,180,796  {(44,104,902)  (5,335,074) (17,419,408) {801,080) _ (14,479,689)
1.043,000 - 112,300 13,378,534 - 14,533,834
- - 3,773 - - 3773
12,307 52,091 - - 15,958 80,356
682,006 43,174,184 3,209,299 - - 47,065,559
{52,715,161) - - - (42,045) __ (52,757,2086)
(50,977.758) _ 43,226,255 _ 3,325,372 _ 13,378,534 {26.,087) 8,926,316
2,203,038 (878,647)  (2,000,702)  (4,040,875) (827,167) (5,553,353}
26,800,260 1,051,739 2,507,933 _ 23,582,540 3,914,207 57,956,678
$ 20,003,298 $ 173,002 § 588,231 § 19,551,666 §  3.087.040 § 52,403,326

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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COUNTY OF DANE

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because:

Governmental funds report capital cutlays as expenditures. However, in the

statement of net assets the cost of these assets is capltalized and they are

depreciated over their estimated useful lives with depreciation expense reported

in the statement of activities.
Capital outlay is reported as an expenditure in the fund financial statements

but is capitalized in the govemment-wide financial statements

Less: Some items are reported as capital outlay but are not capitalized
Depreciation is reported in the government-wide statements - less intemal service funds
Capital contributions reported in the government-wide statements (infrastructure)
Infrastructure financed by the highway fund

Net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i.e., sales, trade-ins)
is to decrease net assels.

Receivables not currently available are reported as deferred revenue in the fund financial
statements but are recognized as revenue when earned in the government-wide
financial statements,

Debt and lease proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds,
but issuing these cbligations increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net
assets. Repayment of principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the staterment of net assets, Refer to note IL.B.

Governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar
items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
statement of activities.

Some expenses in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures
in the governmental funds.

Compensated absences
Claims and judgments
Disability benefits
Accrued interest on debt

Internal service funds are used by managemant to charge the costs of printing, workers
compensation, liability insurance, employee benefits and food service costs to individual
funds. The decrease in net assets of the intemal service funds is reported with governmental
activities.

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

See accompanying notes to financlal statements,

$ (5,553,353)

20,735,756
(645,892)
(7,262,507)

7,093,388

1,989,253

(2,265,902)

46,540

(2,468,279)

108,181

(2,257,225)
70,000
10,615

400,769

(912,080}

$ 9089264
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COUNTY OF DANE

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
December 31, 2005

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Less: Accumulated depreciation

Total Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated

(61,600,572)

Sanitary
Airport Highway Landfill
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and investments $ 37,654,348 $ 1,392,750 $ 4,202,929
Taxes receivable - 4,180,823 -
Accounts receivable, net 1,765,057 216,631 770,520
Due from other governments 1,664 2,796,226 -
Due from other funds “ 141,069 72,863
Inventories - 1,456,341 -
Prepaid items 2,157 78,041 65
Deposits - - .
Restricted cash and investments - - 46,640
Total Current Assets 39,423,226 10,260,881 5,093,017
Noncurrent Assets

Restricted cash and investments 6,485,426 - 4,894,344
Advances to other funds - - 573,536
Other assets 371,956 - -

Capital Assets
Land 27,430,687 139,166 1,427,436
Construction in progress 16,698,457 195,762 -
Land improvements 90,434,154 525,487 15,442,133
Buildings 101,145,635 4,989,743 648,694
Machinery and eguipment 7980990 15,411,163 5,698,172

(10,422,725) (11,773,229)

Depreciation) 192,098,251 10,538,596 11,343,206
Total Noncurrent Assets 198,955,633 10,538,596 16,811,086
Total Assets 238,378,850 20,799,477 21,904,103
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Continued on
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Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental

Badger Prairie  Non-major Activities -
Health Care Proprietary Totals Internal
Center Funds Current Year  Service Funds

$ 2,000 $ 407,205 $ 43,650,232 $ 6,701,001
- . 4,180,823 -
688,642 200,933 3,649,783 869,050
- 79,158 2,877,048 4,683

- - 213,932 -

29,758 63,007 1,549,108 -
66 - 80,329 327

- - - 50,000

- - 46,640 -
720,466 759,303 56,256,893 7,625,061
58,321 - 11,438,091 1,809,171

- - 573,536 -

- - 371,956 -
45,988 - 20,043,177 -
- - 16,894,219 -
354,447 - 106,756,221 -
4,027,951 - 110,812,023 1,868,705
2,543,304 5,792,328 37,034,957 974,337
(4,336,998) (1,686,209)  (79,819,733) {1,238,435)
2,634692 4,106,119 220,720,864 1,704,607
2,693,013 4,106,119 233,104,447 3,513,778
3413479 4,865422 289,361,340 11,138,839

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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COUNTY OF DANE

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
December 31, 2005

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes
Accrued compensated absences
Other accrued liabilities and deposits
Due to other governments
Due to other funds
Current portion of postclosure care costs
Current portion of general obligation debt
Current portion of notes payable
Current portion of leases payable
Unearned revenue

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities
Advances from other funds
Leases payable
Accrued compensated absences

Long-term care and postclosure care costs payable

General obligation debt
Unamortized premium on debt
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities
NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted for:
Capital projects
Landfill lorg-term care costs
Unrestricted {deficit)

TOTAL NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Sanitary

Airport Highway Landfill
$ 259,016 $ 2,134,589 § 188,142
203,762 357,573 45,401
392,711 594,559 136,727
239,602 1,443 -
538,583 446,070 204,310
- - 39,593
- - 46,640
2,635,000 38,609 -
25,000 4,257,386 -
4,293,674 7,830,229 660,813
1,156,203 2,028,920 346,582
- - 5,758,611
- 49,480,000 107,768 -
1,832,139 - -
52,478,342 2,136,688 6,105,193
56,772,016 9,966,917 6,766,006
138,542903 10,392,219 11,343,206
6,485,426 - -
- - 41,149
36,578,514 440,341 3,753,742
$ 181,606,843 $10,832,560 $15,138,007
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Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental

Badger Prairie  Non-major Activities -
Health Care  Proprietary Totals Internal

Center Funds Current Year  Service Funds

$ 220217 $ 26492 $ 2837456 § 84,106

377,800 19,831 1,004,367 54,309

455,746 42,371 1,622,114 37,726

109,804 4,463 355,312 3,779,139

27,868 - 1,216,831 135

73,217 3,074 115,884 792

- - 46,640 -

263,154 248,796 3,185,559 -

34,051 - 34,051 -

- - - 6,198

- - 4,282,386 -

1,670,857 345,027 14,700,600 3,962,405

- - - 573,536

- - - 13,516

1,273,458 125,983 4,931,146 154,986

- - 5,758,611 -

636,430 1,757,000 51,991,198 -

- - 1,832,139 -

1,909,888 1,882,983 64,513,094 742,038

3,480,745 2,228,010 79,213,694 4,704,443

1,703,666 2,156,881 164,138,875 1,684,893

- - 6,485,426 -

- - 41,149 -

{1,770,932} 480,531 39,482,196 4,749,503

$ (67,266) $2,637,412 $210,147646 § 6,434,396

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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COUNTY OF DANE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND
NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
intergovernmental charges for services
Parking fees and concession sales
Other

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services
Contractual services
Highway operations
Insurance services
Other
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Taxes
Intergovernmental grants
Investment income
interest expense
interest charged to consfruction
Amortization of bond premium

Gain/(Loss) on sale or disposal of capital assets
Passenger facility charges
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Income {Loss) Before Contributions and Transfers
Capital contributions
Transfers in
Transfers cut
Change in Net Assets
TOTAL NET ASSETS - Beginning (as restated)

TOTAL NET ASSETS - ENDING (DEFICIT})

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Sanitary

Airport Highway Landfill
$ 8,059,595 § 10,708,342 § 6,827,293
- 3,854,742 -
5,424,615 - -
271,460 24,922 103,088
13,755,670 14,588,006 6,930,381
4,434,916 9,162,608 1,568,753
1,914,667 861,618 2,588,225
- 8,381,992 -
1,994,300 - 3,056,415
5,427,877 985,319 085,608
13,771,760 19,381,537 8,189,001
{16,090} __ (4,793,531) (1,258,620)
- 4,499,824 -
- 973,063 -
1,427,234 - 66,626
{2,519,620) (5,512) -
2,069,812 - -
331,551 - -
7.073 - (91,433)
3,186,691 - -
4,502,741 5,467,375 (24,807)
4,486,651 673,844 (1,283,427}
17,913,202 - -
- 1,043,000 -
- (1,193,112) -
22,399,943 523,732 {1,283,427)
159,206,900 10,308,828 16,421,524

$ 181,606,843 $ 108

32,560 $ 15,138,097

—————
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Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Badger Prairie  Non-major Activities-
Health Care Proprietary Totals Internal
Center Funds Current Year Service Funds
$ 5989208 $ 2217762 $ 33,802,200 $ 5,756,945
- - 3,854,742 -
- - 5,424,615 -
13,527 - 412,997 8,076
6,002,735 2,217,762 43,494,554 5,765,021
10,193,031 559,012 25,898,320 1,827,069
2,277,280 79,447 7,721,237 103,169
- - 8,381,992 -
- - - 3,376,208
1,111,836 457,034 6,619,585 1,478,777
200,755 251,877 7,851,436 70,939
13,782,902 1,347,370 56,472,570 6,856,252
{7,780,167) 870,392 (12,978,016) {1,091,231)
- - 4,499,824 -
961,725 - 1,934,788 -
- - 1,493,860 183,745
(27,755) (32,921) {2,585,808) {4,594)
- - 2,069,812 -
- - 331,551 -
- 458 {83,902} -
- - 3,186,691 -
933,970 (32,463) 10,846,816 179,151
(6,846,197) 837,929 (2,131,200) (912,080)
- - 17,913,292 -
6,523,855 - 7,566,855 -
- (682,006) (1,875,208) -
{322,342) 165,833 21,473,739 (912,080)
255,076 2,481,579 188,673,907 7,346,476
$ (67,266) $ 2637412 $ 210,147646 § 6,434,396

See accompanying notes to financial statements,
Page 27




COUNTY OF DANE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Received from customers
Received fromn other funds
Paid to suppliers for goods and services
Paid to employees for services

Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
TFransfers in
Transfers out
General property taxes
Intergovernmental grants
Payment of other long-term debt
Advances from other funds
Net Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal payments on leng-term debt
interest paid on capital debt
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Passenger facility charges
Capital contributions
Net Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment income
Marketable securities purchased
Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Beginning of Year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Sanitary
Airport Highway Landfiil

$ 13,396,720 § 12,663,866 $ 6,770,211

(4,065,344)  (8,073,321)  {4,570.155)

(4,234,302)  (9,151,008)  (1,558,753)
5007,074  (4,561,363) 641,303

- 4,043,000 -

- (1,193,112) -

- 4,499,824 .

- 973,063 -

- 5322775 -
(2,585,000) (69,640) ;
(2,483,681) {5,511) -
(33,177,671) (780,732)  (1,269,114)
3,186,691 . )
17,913,292 . .
(17,146,369) (855,883)  (1,269,114)
1,427,234 - 66,626
- - (67,001)

1,427,234 - (375)
(10,622,061) (94,471) (628,186)
54,761,835 1,487,221 4,877,755

$ 44139774 § 1,392,750 $ 4,249,569
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Continued on
Next Page

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Badger Prairie  Non-major Activities -
Health Care Proprietary Totals Internal

Center Funds Current Year  Service Funds

$ 6015437 $ 1,710,871 § 40557105 § 74,434

- 427,995 427,995 5,648,906
(2,742,672) (697.956)  (20,149,448) (4,134,455)
(10,561,106) (559,012) _ (26,065,081) (1,827,069}
(7,288,341) 881,808 (5,229,429) (238,094)

6,523,855 - 7,566,855 -

- (682,096} (1,875,208) -

- - 4,499,824 -

961,725 - 1,934,788 -
- - - (130,000}

- - - 573,536

7,485,580 {682,096) 12,126,259 443,536
(287,124) (246,717} (3,188,481) {7,361)
(27,754) (56,170) (2,573,116) {4,595)

{97.062) {(110,512)  (35,435,001) -

- - 3,186,691 -

- - 17,913,202 -
(411,940) {413,399} _ (20,096,705) {11,956)

- - 1,493,860 183,745

- - (67,001) -

- - 1,426,859 183,745

(214,701) (213,597)  (11,773,016) 377,231

275,022 620,802 62,022,635 6,323,770

$ 60,321 $ 407,205 $ 50249619 $ 6,701,001

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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COUNTY OF DANE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005

Business-type Activilies - Enterprise Funds

Sanitary
Airport Highway Landfill

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss) $ (16,000) § (4,793,531} $ (1.258,620)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash flows
from operating activities
Non-cash items included in operating income:

Depreciation 5,427,877 985,319 985,608
Changes in assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable (357,376) 109,748 486,229
Due from other funds {1,664) (30,041) (646,399)
Due from other governments - (1,714,226) -
inventories - 463,775 -
Prepaid items {1,670} (70,403) (65)
Accounts payable (203,368) 898,182 {187,599)
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes - 209,822 26,930
Accrued compensated absences 249,275 116,590 -
Other accrued liabilities and deposits - - 157,865
Due to other governments - (446,977) -
Due to other funds - - 58,297
Unearned revenue 9¢ (289,621) -
Long-term care and postclosure care costs payable - - 1,019,057
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 5,097,074 § (4,561,363) § 641,303

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Cash and investments - statement of net assets - proprietary fund $ 37,654,348 § 1,392,750 $ 4,202,929
Restricted cash and investments - statement of net assets -
proprietary fund
Current - - 46,640
Noncurrent 6,485,426 - 4,894,344
Less: Non-cash equivalents - - (4,804,344)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $ 44,139,774 § 1,302,750 $ 4,249,569
NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest charged to construction $ 2,069,812 § - % -
Capital lease - - -
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Continued From
Previous Page

Business-type Aclivities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Badger Prairie  Non-major Activities -
Health Care Proprietary Totals Internal
Center Funds Current Year  Service Funds

$ (7.780,167) $ 870,392 § (12,978,016) § (1,091,231)

200,755 251,877 7,851,436 70,939
12,702 (116,990) 134,313 (41,593)
- 6,282 (671,822) -

- (201)  (1,714,427) -
(4,415) 23,215 482,575 -
(66) - (72,204) (327)
224,876 (178,724) 555,367 19,826
(32,216) 10,439 214,975 -
- 11,841 377,706 5,178

. - 157,865 801,523
21,678 - (425,299) {681)
) 68,512 1,767 128,576 (1,728)
- - (289,531} -

- - 1,019,057 -

$ (7288341) $ 881898 § (5229429) $ (238,094)

$ 2000 $ 407,205 $ 43659232 $ 6,701,001
- ; 46,640 -

58,321 - 11,438,001 -

- - (4,894,344) -

$ 60,321 $ 407,205 $ 50,249,619 $ 6,701,001
$ - § - $ 2069812 $ -
- - - 27,075

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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COUNTY OF DANE

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
December 31, 2005

Private Purpose Agency

Trusts Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 223,281 § 15,351,422
Taxes receivable - 9,111,144
Total Assets 223,281 24,462,566
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 450 4,904
Other accrued liabilities and deposits - 3,607,888
Due to other governmental units - 20,849,774
Total Liabilities 450 24,462,566
NET ASSETS
Reserved for private purpose trust activities 222.831 -
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 222831 § -

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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COUNTY OF DANE

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005

Private Purpose

Trusts
ADDITIONS
Investment income $ 9,133
Total Additions 9,133
DEDUCTIONS
Scholarships and Badger Prairie Health Care
Center patient benefits 6,799
Toetal Deductions 6,799
Change in Net Assets 2,334
NET ASSETS - Beginning 220,497
NET ASSETS - ENDING 3 222,831

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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COUNTY OF DANE

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
COMPONENT UNITS
December 31, 2005

Dane County Henry Vilas Park

Housing Zoological
Authority Society, Inc. Totals
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 1,050,367 % 3,331,751 4,382,118
Recsivables
Accounts 11,861 1,903,394 1,915,255
Loans 193,903 - 193,903
Interest - 3,514 3,514
Due from other govemments 28,438 - 26,438
inventories - 123,355 123,355
Prepaid items 4,584 686 5,270
Total Current Assets 1,289,153 5,362,700 6,651,853
Noncurrent Assets
Restricted cash and investments 97,355 65,450 162,805
Capital Assets
Land 1,197,431 - 1,197,431
Construction in progress 29,907 - 29,907
Buildings 5,824,604 - 5,824,604
Machinery and equipment 162,508 173,195 335,703
Less accumulated depreciation (5,005,125) {119,848) {5,124,973)
Total Capital Assets {Nat of Accumulated
Depreciation) 2,209,325 53,347 2,262,672
Total Noncurrent Assets 2,306,680 118,797 2425477
Total Assets 3,595,833 5,481,497 9,077,330
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 16,819 1,478,482 1,495,301
Other acerued liabilities and deposits 53,823 - 53,823
Dus to other governments - 7,083 7,083
Current portion of unfunded pension obligation 10,560 - 10,560
Current portion of notes payable 40,148 - 40,148
Uneamed revenue 43,306 - 43,306
Total Current Liabilities 164,656 1,485,565 1,650,221
Noncurrent Liabllitles
Unfunded pension obligation 218,692 - 216,692
Notes payable 46,932 - 46,932
Other long-term liabilities 73,874 - 73,874
Deferred revenue 193,903 - 193,903
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 531,401 - 531,401
Total Liabilities 696,057 1,485,565 2,181,822
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 1,935,245 . 1,935,245
Restricted 284,400 2,218,945 2,503,345
Unrestricted 680,131 1,776,987 2,457,118
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 2,899,776 § 39959832 $ 6,805,708

See accompanying notes to flnancial statements.
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COUNTY OF DANE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS -
COMPONENT UNITS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005

Dane County Henry Vilas Park

Housing Zoological
Authority Society, Inc. Totals
OPERATING REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ 7825224 $ - $ 7825224
Charges for services 637,687 1,108,493 1,746,180
Investment income 20,189 53,210 73,399
Miscellaneous 376,166 662,388 1,038,564
Total Operating Revenues 8,869,266 1,824,091 10,683,357
OPERATING EXPENSES
Current
Culture, education and recreation - 2,806,232 2,806,232
Conservation and development 8,877,457 - 8,877,457
Total Operating Expenses 8,877,457 2,806,232 11,683,689
Operating Income (Loss) (18,191) (982,141) __ (1,000,332)
NONOPERATING EXPENSES
Interest expense 11,759 - 11,759
Income (Loss) Before Contributions (29,950) (982,141) __ (1,012,001)
Capital contributions - 2,436,487 2,436,487
Net Change in Net Assets (29,950) 1,454,346 1,424,396
TOTAL NET ASSETS - Beginning 2,929,726 2,541,586 5,471,312
TOTAL NET ASSETS - ENDING $ 2,899,776 $ 3,995,932 $ 6,895,708

— See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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COUNTY OF DANE
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COUNTY OF DANE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2005

NOTE | = SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the County of Dane, Wisconsin conform to generally accepted
accounting principles as applicable to governmental units.

A. REPORTING ENTITY

This report includes all of the funds of the County of Dane. The reporting entity for the County
consists of (a)} the primary government, (b) organizations for which the primary government is
financially accountable, and (c) other organizations for which the nature and significance of their
relationship with the primary government are such that their exclusion would cause the reporting
entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. A legally separate organization
should be reported as a component unit if the elected officials of the primary government are
financially accountable to the organization. The primary government is financially accountable if
it appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing body and (1) it is able to impose its
will on that organization or (2) there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial
benefits to or burdens on the primary government. The primary government may be financially
accountable if an organization is fiscally dependent on the primary government,

A legally separate, tax exempt organization should be reported as a component unit of a
reporting entity if 2l of the following criteria are met: (1) the economic resources received or held
by the separate organization are entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the primary
government, its component units, or its constituents; (2) the primary government is entitled to, or
has the ability to otherwise access, a majority of the economic resources received or held by the
separate organization; (3) the economic resources received or held by an individual organization
that the specific primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the ability to
otherwise access, are significant to that primary government. Biended component units, although
legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the government's operations and are reported
with similar funds of the primary government. The discretely presented component units are
reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial to emphasize that they are
legally separate from the government. This report does not contain any blended component
units.

Discretely Prasented Component Units
Dane County Housing Authority

The government-wide financial statements include the Dane County Housing Authority ("Housing
Authority") as a component unit. The Housing Authority is a legally separate organization. The
board of the Housing Authority is appointed by the County Executive. Wisconsin Statutes provide
for circumstances whereby the County can impose its will on the Housing Authority, and also
create a potential financial benefit to or burden on the County. See Note IV.K. As a component
unit, the Housing Authority’s financial statements have been presented as a discrete column in
the financial statements. The information presented is for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2005. Separately issued financial statements of the Dane County Housing Authority may be
obtained from the Housing Authority's office, 2001 West Broadway, Suite 1, Monona, Wisconsin
53713-3707.
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NOTE | — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

A. REPORTING ENTITY (CONt.)
Discretely Presented Component Units (cont.)
Henry Vilas Park Zoological Society, inc.

The government-wide financial statements include the Henry Vilas Park Zoological Society, inc.
{the Society) as a component unit. The Society is a legally separate organization that has been
presented as a discrete component unit according to the provisions of GASB Neo. 39, as defined
in Note LA. See Note IV.L. The information presented is for the fiscal year ended March 31,
2005. Separately issued financial statements of the Society may be obtained from the Henry
Vilas Park Zoological Scciety’s office, 806 South Randall Avenue, Madison, W| 53715-1665.

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of net assets and statement of activities display information about the reporting
government as a whole. They inciude all funds of the reperting entity except for fiduciary funds.
The statements distinguish between governmental and business-type activities. Governmental
activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other
nonexchange revenues. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged
to external parties for goods or services. Likewise, the primary government is reported
separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is
financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. The County does not allocate indirect expenses
to functions in the statement of activities. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a
given function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items
not included among program revenues are reported as general revenues. Internally dedicated
resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

Financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds, each of which is considered
to be a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of
self-balancing accounts, which constitute its assets, liabilities, net assets/fund equity, revenues,
and expenditures/expenses.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.
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NOTE | - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)
Fund Financial Statements (cont.)

Funds are organized as major funds or non-major funds within the governmental and proprietary
statements. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the governmental and proprietary
categories. A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the County or meeis
the following criteria:

a. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual
governmental or enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all
funds of that category or type, and

b, The same element of the individual governmental fund or enterprise fund that met the 10
percent test is at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all governmental and
enterprise funds combined.

c. In addition, any other governmental or enterprise fund that the County believes is
particularly important to financial statement users may be reported as a major fund.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

General — accounts for the County’'s primary operating activities. It is used to account
for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Human Services — accounts for resources legally restricted to supporting expenditures
for the human services related programs.

Debt Service — used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment
of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs.

Capital Projects — used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition
of equipment and/or major capitai facilities.

The County reports the fellowing major enterprise funds:

Airport — accounts for operations and maintenance of the County's airport

Highway - accounts for funds used to maintain and improve roadways within the
County’s jurisdiction

Sanitary Landfill - accounts for operations and maintenance of a sanitary landfill
serving as a solid waste disposal site for the entire County

Badger Prairie Health Care Center -~ accounts for activity associated with the
operations and maintenance of the County’s health care facility.
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NOTE | — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(cont.)

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)
Fund Financial Statements (cont.)
The County reports the foliowing non-major governmental and enterprise funds:

Special Revenue Funds — used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
(other than major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for
specified purposes.

Board of Health

Library

Land Information

Bridge Aid

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Loans

HOME

Commerce Revolving Loan

Scheidegger Trust Fund

Enterprise Funds — may be used to report any activity for which a fee is charged to
external users for goods or services and must be used for activities which meet certain
debt or cost recovery criteria.

Printing and Services

Methane Gas

In addition, the County reports the following fund types:

Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one
department or agency to other departments or agencies of the County, or to other governmental
units, on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Internal service funds have been established by the County to pay for workers' compensation
and general liability claims and to purchase insurance coverage from cutside carriers or to self-
insure certain employee benefits. Additionally, Employee Benefits, and Consolidated Food
Service operations are accounted for as internal service funds. Billings for services to user funds
and other governmental units are based on standard rates which are set at a level intended to
recover the costs of providing services.

Private-purpose trust funds are used to report certain trust arrangements under which principal
and income benefit individuals, private organizations, or other governments. The John T. Lyle,
Blockstein Memorial, and Lyman Anderson trust operations are accounted for as private-purpose
trust funds.

Agency funds are used to account for the receipt and dishursement of various taxes, deposits

and assessments held by the County in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals,
private organizations, and/or other governmental units.
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NOTE | — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

C. MEASUREMENT Focus, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING,
AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide statement of net assets and statement of activities are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the
liability is incurred or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and
liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the
exchange takes place. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are
levied. Taxes receivable for the following year are recorded as receivables and deferred
revenues. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider are met. Special assessments are recorded as revenues
when earned. Unbilled receivables are recorded as revenues when services are provided.

The business-type activities follow all pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, and have elected not to follow Financial Accounting Standards Board
pronocuncements issued after November 30, 1989.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmenta!l fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when
they are both measurable and available. Available means collectible within the current pericd or
soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
County considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the
current fiscal period except for human services reimbursable grants, for which available is
defined as 180 days. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except
for unmatured interest on long-term debt, claims, judgments, compensated absences, and
pension expenditures, which are recorded as a fund liability when expected to be paid with
expendable available financial resources,

Property taxes are recorded in the year levied as receivables and deferred revenues. They are
recognized as revenues in the succeeding year when services financed by the levy are being
provided.

Intergovernmental aids and grants are recognized as revenues in the period the County is
entitled to the resources and the amounts are available. Amounts owed to the County which are
not available are recorded as receivables and deferred revenues. Amounts received prior to the
entitlement period are also recorded as deferred revenues.
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NOTE | — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cont.)

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING,
AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION (cont.)

Fund Financial Statements (cont.)

Revenues susceptible to accrual include property taxes, miscellaneous taxes, public charges for
services and interest. Other general revenues such as fines and forfeitures, inspection fees,
recreation fees, and miscellaneous revenues are recognized when received in cash or when
measurable and available under the criteria described above.

The County reports deferred revenues on its governmental funds balance sheet. Deferred
revenues arise from taxes levied in the current year which are for subsequent year's operations.
For governmental fund financial statements, deferred revenues arise when a potential revenue
does not meet both the "measurable” and “available” criteria for recognition in the current period.
Deferred revenues also arise when resources are received before the County has a legaf claim
to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In
subsequent periods, when beth revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the County has a
legal claim to the resources, the liability for deferred revenue is removed from the balance sheet
and revenue is recognized.

Proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements (other than agency funds) are reported using
the aconomic resources measurement focus and the accrua! basis of accounting, as described
previously in this note. Agency funds follow the accrual basis of accounting and do not have a
measurement focus.

The enterprise funds follow all pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, and have elected not to follow Financial Accounting Standards Board pronouncements
issued after November 30, 1989, The proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and
expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from
providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's.
principal ongoing operations. The principal cperating revenues of the Airport, Highway, Sanitary
Landfill, Badger Prairie Health Care Center, Printing and Services, and Methane Gas are
charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for proprietary funds include
the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses nct meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and
expenses.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQuUiTY

1. Deposits and Investments

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the County considers all highly liquid investments
with an initial maturity of three months or less when acquired to be cash equivalents.
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NOTE | — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EauiTy (cont.)
1. Deposits and Investments (cont.)

Investment of County funds is restricted by state statutes. Available investments are limited to:

1. Time deposits in any credit union, bank, savings bank or trust company maturing in
three years or less.

2. Bonds or securities of any County, city, drainage district, technical college district,
village, town, or school district of the state. Also, bonds issued by a local exposition
district, a local professional baseball park district, a local professional footbali stadium
district, a local cultural arts district, or by the University of Wisconsin Hospitals and
Clinics Authority.

3. Bonds or securities issued or guaranteed by the federal government.
The local government investment pool.

5. Any security maturing in seven years or less and having the highest or second highest
rating category of a nationally recognized rating agency.

6. Securities of an open-end management investment company or investment trust,
subject to various conditions and investment options.

7. Repurchase agreements with public depositories, with certain conditions.

The County has adopted an investment policy. That policy follows the state statute for allowable
investments.

As described in Note IV.A,, the County is exposed to the following deposit and investment risks:
custedial credit risk (deposits and investments), interest rate risk and credit risk. The County’s
investment policy does not specifically address these risks.

Investments are stated at fair value, which is the amount at which an investment could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties. Fair values are based on quoted
market prices. No investments are reported at amortized cost. Adjustments necessary to record
investments at fair value are recorded in the operating statement as increases or decreases in
investment income. Investment income on commingled investments of governmental accounting
funds is allocated to the general fund, with the exception of the airport, John T. Lyle Trust, and
the Blockstein Memorial trust funds which are allocated interest based upon the pooled interest
rate. The difference between the bank balance and carrying value is due to outstanding checks
and/or deposits in transit.

The Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) is part of the State Investment Fund
{SIF), and is managed by the State of Wisconsin Investment Board. The SIF is not registered
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, but operates under the statutory authority of
Wisconsin Chapter 25. The SIF reports the fair value of its underlying assets annually,
Participants in the LGIP have the right to withdraw their funds in total on one day’s notice. At
December 31, 2005, the fair value of the County’s share of the LGIPs assets was substantially
equal to the amount as reported in these statements.
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NOTE | -~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cont.)

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQuiTY (cont.)

1. Deposits and Investments (cont.)

The Madison Community Foundation {“the Foundation") is a community endowment fund. The
Foundation is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission. [t constitutes a
contractual agreement between the County and the Foundation with respect to investment of
County assets. The Foundation reports the fair value of its underlying assets annually. At
December 31, 2005, the fair value of the Foundation's assets was substantially equal to the
County's share as reported in Note IV.A,

See Note IV.A. for further information.
2. Receivables
a. Property and Sales Tax

Property taxes are levied in December on the assessed value as of the prior January 1. They are
not legally available for appropriation until the ensuing year. In addition to property taxes for the
County, taxes are collected for and remitled to the state and county governments as well as the
local school district and technical college district. Taxes for all state and local governmental units
billed in the current vear for the succeeding vear are reflected as receivables and due to other
taxing units on the Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets - Fiduciary Funds in the Agency column.

Property tax calendar — 2005 tax roll:

Lien date and levy date December 2005
Tax bills mailed December 2005
Payment in full, or January 31, 2006
First instaliment due January 31, 2006
Second installment due July 31, 2006
Personal property taxes in full January 31, 2006
Tax sale — 2005 delinquent

real estate taxes October 2008

Property taxes are due, in the year subsequent te levy, on the last day of January, and collected
by local treasurers through that date, at which time unpaid taxes are assigned to the County and
appropriate receivables and payables are recorded. Tax collections become the responsibility of
the County and taxes receivable include unpaid taxes levied for all taxing entities within the
County. The County makes restitution to local districts in August for payables recorded at the
settlement date without regard to collected funds. A lien is placed on all properties for which a
portion of the current tax levy remains unpaid as of September 1. The interest and penalties on
taxes not paid within 80 days of the end of the current fiscal period is shown as deferred revenue
until it is received in cash,
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NOTE | — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.}

D. ASSETs, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQuiTY {cont.)

2. Receivables (cont.)

a. Property and Sales Tax (cont.)

The portion of County property taxes receivable at December 31, 2005, which relates to taxes
initially levied by other municipalities and uncollected within sixty days after year-end, has been
reflected in the accompanying financial statements as a reservation of fund balance of the
general fund in the amount of $4,118,326.

The County has a .5% sales tax which is collected by the State of Wisconsin, Total revenues of
$40,620,232 from this tax for the 2005 fiscal year are recorded in the general fund.

b. Allowances

No allowance for uncollectible delinquent taxes has been provided because of the County's
demonstrated ability to recover any losses through the sale of the applicable property.

Accounts receivable in all funds have been adjusted for all known uncollectible accounts.
¢. Due To/From/Advances

During the course of operations, transactions occur between individual funds that may result in
amounts owed between funds. Short-term interfund loans are reported as “due to and from other
funds.” Long-term interfund loans (noncurrent portion) are reported as “advances from and to
other funds." Interfund receivables and payables between funds within governmental and
business-type activities are eliminated in the statement of net assets. Any residual balances
ouistanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the
government-wide financial statements as “internal balances”.

d. Loans Receivable

The County has received federal and state grant funds for economic development loan programs
to various businesses. The County records a loan receivable when the loan has been made and
funds have been disbursed.

it is the County’s policy to record deferred revenue for the net amount of the receivable balance.
As loans are repaid, revenue is recognized. When new loans are made from the repayments,
expenditures are recorded. Interest received from lean repayments is recognized as revenue
when received in cash. Any unspent loan repayments at year end are prepared as designated
fund balance in the fund financial statements.

e. Other

This represents a lawsuit settlement that the County was awarded. The County receives an
annual payment with the final payment due to the County in 2066. The revenues are recognized
when they are received. Refer to Note IV.B.
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NOTE [ — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQuiTY (cont.)
3. Inventories and Prepaid Items

Governmental fund inventory items are charged to expenditure accounts when purchased. Year-
end inventory was not significant. Proprietary fund inventories are generally used for
construction or for operation and maintenance work. They are not for resale. They are valued at
cost based on weighted average, and charged to construction or operation and maintenance
expense when used.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements.

4. Restricted Assels
Cash and Investments

Certain proceeds and other cash balances of the County’s enterprise funds are classified as
restricted on the balance sheet because their use is limited. Restricted assets included in the
Badger Prairie Health Care Center Enterprise fund at December 31, 2005 consist of patient trust
funds which are not legally available to the County to finance operations. Restricted assets
included in the Sanitary Landfill Enterprise fund at December 31, 2005 represents deposits with
the State of Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources for long-term care and closure costs of
landfill sites. Restricted assets included in the Airport enterprise fund at December 31, 2005
consists of passenger facility charges as authorized by the Federal Aviation Administration.

Deposit with Wisconsin Municipal Mutual Insurance Company

Refer to Note V.B.
5. Capital Assets

Government-Wide Statements
Capital assets are reported in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are
defined by the government as assets with an initial cost of more than $5,000 for general capital
assets. The County will capitalize infrastructure if it exceeds the following thresholds: 1) Roads -
25% of the County's definition of a segment, 2) Bridges - over 20 feet, and 3) Culverts - over 10
feet. The County is also capitalizing all traffic signats, All capital assets are valued at historical

cost, or estimated historical cost if actual amounts are unavailable. Donated capital assets are
recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation.
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NOTE | — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cont.)

D.  ASSETS, LIaBILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EouiTy (cont.)
5. Capital Assets (cont.)
Government-Wide Statements (cont.)

Additions to and replacements of capital assets of business-type activities are recorded at
originat cost, which includes material, labor, overhead, and an allowance for the cost of funds
used during construction when significant. For tax-exempt debt, the amount of interest
capitalized equals the interest expense incurred during construction netted against any interest
revenue from temporary investment of borrowed fund proceeds. $2,069,812 of net interest was
capitalized during the current year in the Airport fund. The cost of property replaced, retired or
otherwise disposed of, is deducted from capital assets and, generally, together with removal
costs less salvage, is charged to accumulated depreciation.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assels is recorded as an allocated expense in the
statement of activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the statement of net assets.
Depreciation is provided over the assets’ estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of
depreciation. The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as follows:

Land Improvements 10-20 Years
Buildings 20-40 Years
Zoo animals 4-55 Years
Machinery and Equipment 5-10 Years
Roads 25-40 Years
Bridges 50 Years
Traffic Signals 40 Years
Cuiverts 50 Years

Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are
accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital
assets used in proprietary fund operations are accounted for the same way as in the
government-wide statements.

8. Other Assets

In governmental funds, debt issuance costs are recognized as expenditures in the current period.
For the government-wide and the proprietary fund type financial statements, debt issuance costs
are deferred and amortized over the term of the debt issue.

7. Compensated Absences

Under terms of employment, employees are granted sick leave and vacations in varying
amounts. Only benefits considered to be vested are disclosed in these statements.
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NOTE | — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cont.)

D. ASSETs, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQuITY (cont.)

7. Compensated Absences {cont.)

All vested vacation and sick leave pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and
proprietary financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds
only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements, or
are payable with expendable available resources.

Payments for vacation and sick leave will be made at rates in effect when the benefits are used.
Accumulated vacation and sick leave liabilities at December 31, 2005 are determined on the
hasis of current salary rates and include salary related payments. -

8. Long-Term Obligations/Conduit Debf

All long-term obligations to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources are
reported as liabilities in the gevernment-wide statements. The long-term obligations consists
primarily of notes and bonds payable, and accrued compensated absences.

Long-term obligations for governmental funds are not reported as liabilities in the fund financial
statements. The face value of debts (plus any premiums) are reported as other financing sources
and payments of principal and interest are reported as expenditures. The accounting in
proprietary funds is the same as it is in the government-wide statements.

For the government-wide statements and proprietary fund statements, bond premiums and
discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the issue using the straight-line method.
Gains or losses on prior refundings are amortized over the remaining life of the old debt, or the
life of the new debt, whichever is shorter. The balance at year end for both premiums/discounts
and gains/losses, as applicable, is shown as an increase or decrease in the {iability section of
the statement of net assets,

The County does not engage in conduit debt transactions.
9. Claims and Judgments

Claims and judgments are recorded as liabilities if all the conditions of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board pronouncements are met. Claims and judgments that would normally be
liquidated with expendable available financial resources are recorded during the year as
expenditures in the governmental funds. If they are not to be liquidated with expendable
available financial resources, no liability is recognized in the governmental fund statements. The
related expenditure is recognized when the liability is liquidated. Claims and judgments are
recorded in the government-wide statements and proprietary ftinds as expenses when the related
liabilities are incurred, Refer to Note V.C. on commitments and contingencies.
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NOTE | — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQuiTy (cont.)
10. Equity Classifications

Government-Wide Statements
Equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three components:

a. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt — Consists of capital assets including
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets less any
unspent debt proceeds.

b. Restricted net assets — Consists of net assets with constraints placed on their use
either by 1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments or, 2}law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.

¢. Unrestricted net assets — All other net assets that do not meet the definition of
“restricted” or “invested in capital assets, net of related debt.”

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County's policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Fund Statements

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is further classified as
reserved and unreserved. Unreserved fund balance may include funds set aside by management
for specific uses, which are labeled “designated.” The balance of unreserved fund balance is
available for appropriation. Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-
wide statements.

NOTE Il - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL
FUND BALANCE SHEET AND THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance — total
governmental funds and net assets — governmental activities as reported in the government-wide
statement of net assets. One element of that reconciliation explains that "Capital assets used in
governmental funds are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds."
The details of this $271,458,242 difference is as follows:
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NOTE Il - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {cont.)

A. EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL
FUND BALANCE SHEET AND THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (cont.)

Land $ 63,535,471
Construction in progress 1,448,914
Land improvements 38,142,434
Zoo animais 142,965,779
Buildings 369,205
Machinery and equipment 20,168,598
infrastructure 88,343,761
Less: Accumulated depreciation (81,811,313)
Less: Internal service fund capital
assets, net of depreciation {1,704,607)
Adjustment for Capital Assets $271,458,242

Another element of this reconciliation explains that "some liabilities, including tong-term debt are
not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.” The
details of this $166,440,526 difference in liabilities is as follows:

Bonds and notes payable $ 132,970,292
Compensated absences 31,055,531
Other long-term liabilities 212,304
Capital lease obligations : 55,684
Accrued interest 1,064,859
Unamortized debt discount, premium and issue costs 1,081,857

Net adjustment to reduce fund balance -
total governmental funds to arrive at
nat assets — governmental activities $ 166,440,527

B. EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND STATEMENT
OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES AND THE
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — total governmental funds and
changes in net assets of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement
of activities. One element of that reconciliation explains that “the issuance of long-term debt
{e.g.. bonds, leases)} provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the
repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of
governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also,
governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items
when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of
activities.” The details of this $(2,468,279) difference is as follows:
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NOTE Il - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont.)

B. ExpPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND STATEMENT
OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES AND THE
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (cont.)

Debt issued or incurred: :
General obligation debt $ (14,533,834)

Capital lease {80,356)
Principal repayments:

General obligation debt 12,095,295

Capital lease 50,616

Net Adjustment to Decrease Net Changes in
Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds
to arrive at Changes in Net Assets of
Governmental Activities $ (2,468,279)

NOTE lil - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Budgetary information is derived from the annual operating budget and is presented using the
same basis of accounting for each fund as described in Note {.C.

All County departments are required to submit their annual budget requests for the ensuing year
to the County Executive by July 31. The Department of Administration reviews the requests in
detail with the departments during September.

After all of the requests have been reviewed the County Executive submits her proposed
Executive Budget to the County Board of Supervisors. The County Ordinances require that this
be done on or before October 1. The Board of Supervisers completes its review and adopts the
budget on or before December 1 to ensure that property tax bills can be furnished to property tax
payers in a timely manner so as to allow for their payment prior to December 31 if the taxpayer
so chooses.

County policy requires that budgeted revenues and expenditures/expenses for the ensuing year
be established on a modified accrual basis of accounting, controlled within individual agencies,
and are monitored by an annual appropriation and encumbrance system. Budgeted revenues and
expenditures/expenses are approved by the County Board of Supervisors. The budget is defined
as the criginally approved budget, plus or minus approved revisions,

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device for the general,
special revenue, enterprise and internal service funds.

A budget has been adopted for the general fund, certain special revenue funds, and the debt
service fund. A budget has not been formally adopted for the Scheidegger Trust special revenue
fund. The capital projects fund budget was adopted at the project level. Wisconsin Statute 65.90
requires that an annual budget be adopted for all funds.
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COUNTY OF DANE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2005

NOTE lll — STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY {cont.)

A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION (cont.)

The adopted budgets for enterprise and internal service funds are prepared on a basis consistent
with generally accepted accounting principles except for the treatment of capital outlay,
depreciation and principal payments on long-term debt. For budget purposes, capital outlay and
principal payments on long-term debt are included as an expense, whereas, for accounting
purposes, only depreciation is included as an expense.

Budgetary amounts lapse at year-end, except for appropriations of capital projects which have
multi-year budgets and those approved by the County Board as a carryforward to the ensuing
yvear. Unexpended appropriations, net of anticipated revenues, carried forward to 2005 at
December 31, 2005, have been classified as fund balance designated for subsequent year's
expenditures, net of anticipated revenues. The total carried forward is as follows:

General Fund $ 1,916,398
Special Revenue Fund - Human Services 102,118
Special Revenue Fund - Land information 533,573
Special Revenue Fund - Bridge Aid 137,626
Special Revenue Fund — Board of Health 524,290
Capital Projects Fund — Capital Projects 14,842,621

B. Excess EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

The following fund had an excess of expenditures or transfers out over appropriations at the
legal tevel of budgetary control for the year ended December 31, 2005:

Excess

Major Fund
Debt Service Fund $ 2,742,457

C. DEFICIT BALANCES

Generally accepted accounting principles require disclosure of individual funds that have deficit
balances at year end.

As of December 31, 20085, the following individual fund held a deficit balance:

Fund Amount Reason

Special Revenue Fund — CDBG $ 85,781 Grants not sufficient to cover expenditures
loans

Special Revenue Fund - HOME 15,562 Grants not sufficient to cover expenditures

Enterprise Fund — Badger 67,267 Charges for services not sufficient to cover
Prairie Health Care Center expenditures

it is anticipated that future grant revenues and charges for services will provide sufficient funding
to eliminate these deficits.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2005

NOTE Ill - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY {cont.)

D. LiMmiTATIONS ON THE COUNTY'S TAX LEVY RATE AND ITS ABILITY TO ISSUE NEW DEBT

As part of Wisconsin's State Budget Bill (1993 Act 16}, new legislation was passed that limits the
County's future tax levy rates. Generally, the County is limited to its 1992 tax levy rate, based
upon current legislation (State Statute Section 59.605(2)). However, this limitation does not
affect debt authorized prior to August 12, 1993 or refunding bonds.

The County may also exceed the limitation by holding a referendum (according to state statutes)
authorizing the county beard to approve a higher rate. The County may also exceed the rate if it
increases the services it provides due to a transfer of these services from another governmental
unit.

The State Budget Bill also imposes restrictions on the County's ability to issue new debt.
Generally, referendum approval is required to issue unlimited tax general obligation debt, with
the following exceptions:

+ Refunding debt issues
e 75% approval by the county board

+ A reasonable expectation that the new debt can be accommodated within the
existing tax rate

+ Other exceptions as listed in State Statutes Section 67.045
The County is in compliance with the limitation.
E. LIMITATIONS ON THE COUNTY'S Tax LEVY
As part of Wisconsin’s Act 25 (2005), new legislation was passed that limits the County's future
tax levies. Generally, the County is limited to its prior tax levy dollar amount, increased by the
greater of the percentage change in the County's equalized value due to new construction, or

2%. Changes in debt service from one year to the next are generally exempt from this limit. The
levy limit begins with the 2005 levy collected in 2006 and is set to expire after the 2006 levy.
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COUNTY OF DANE
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December 31, 2005

NOTE IV — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The County’s cash and investments at year end were comprised of the following:

Bank and
Carrying Investment Associated
Value Balances Risks

Demand deposits and cash on hand $ 28,770,975 $§ 32,726,255 Custodial

U.S. government securities 14,375,119 14,375,119 Interest rate and custodial

Madison Community Foundation 97,134 97,134 Interest rate and credit

Local government bonds 61,508 61,508 Interest rate and custodial

Repurchase agreements 6,034,390 6,034,390 Credit, custodial, interest
rate

LGIP 78,115,259 78,116,259 Interest rate and credit

Mutual funds 95%.901 955,901 Interest rate risk and
custodial

Total Cash and Investments $ 128,410,286 § 132,365,566

Reconciliation to financial statements
Per statement of net assets
Unrestricted cash and investments $ 101,350,852

Restricted cash and investments 11,484,731
Per statement of net assets —
Fiduciary Funds
Private purpose trust 223,281
Agency 15,351,422
Total Cash and Investments $ 128,410,286

Deposits in each local and area bank are insured by the FDIC in the amount of $100,000 for
interest bearing accounts and $100,000 for noninterest bearing accounts.

Bank accounts are also insured by the State Deposit Guarantee Fund in the amount of $400,000.
However, due to the relatively small size of the Guarantee Fund in relationship to the total
deposits covered and other legal implications, recovery of material principal losses may not be
significant to individual municipalities. This coverage has been considered in computing custodial
credit risk.

Investments in the local government investment pool are covered under a surety bond issued by
Financial Security Assurance, Inc. The bend insures against losses arising from principal
defaults on substantially all types of securities acquired by the pool except U.S. Government and
agency securities. The bond provides unlimited coverage on principal losses, reduced by any
FDIC and State of Wisconsin Guarantee Fund insurance.
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NOTE IV — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)

A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS {cont.)

The Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC), created by the Securities Investor
Protection Act of 1970, is an independent government-sponsored corporation (not an agency of
the U.S. government).

The County's investments at A.G. Edwards provide SIPC membership account protection up to a
maximum of $500,000 per customer, of which $100,000 may be in cash.

The County does not maintain any collateral agreements with its banks.
Custodial Credit Risk

Deposits — Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a financial institution failure, the
County’'s deposits may not be returned to the County.

As of December 31, 2005, $12,994,279 of the County's total bank balances of $25,540,991 were
exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

Uninsured and uncollateralized $ 12‘994=279

Investments — For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of
the counterparty, the County will not be able to recover the vaiue of its investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party.

As of December 31, 2005, the County's investments were exposed to custodial credit risk as
follows:

U.S. Governmen curitie

Neither insured nor registered and held by counterparty’s trust department or

agent not in the County’s name § 9,581,508
Mutual Fund
Neither insured nor registered and held by counterparty’s trust department or
agent not in the County’s name $ 955,901
Credit Risk

Credit risk-the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations.

As of December 31, 2005, the County's investments were rated as follows:

Moody's

Standard Fitch Investor

Investment Type & Poor's Ratings Service
Local government bonds AAA Not available AAA
Federated mutual fund AAAmM AAA Aaa
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NOTE IV — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)

A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS {cont.)

Credit Risk (cont.)
The County also had investments in the following external pools which are not rated:

Local Government Investment Pool
Madison Community Foundation

interest Rate Risk

Interest rate-risk the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment.

As of December 31, 2005, the County's investments were as follows:

Maturity Call Date (if
Specific Investments Date applicable) Fair Value
Madison Community Foundation N/A N/A $ 97,134
Local government bonds 7/01/06 NiA 10,071
Local government bonds 12/01/09 N/A 25,742
Local government bonds 70112 7/101/07 25,695
Repurchase agreements 1/01/06 N/A 6,034,390
Federated mutual fund N/A N/A 955,901
LGIP N/A N/A 78,115,259
Total $ 85,264,192
Maturity
Less than 6 months- 1 year- 2 years- 3 years-
Investment Type Fair Value 6 months 1 year 2 years 3 years 5 years

U.8. Government Securities $14,375,119 $1,591,315 $1,872,458 $4,865,184 $3,517,770 $2,528,392
See Note [.D.1. for further information on deposit and investment policies.
B. RECEIVABLES

All of the receivables are expected to be collected within one year except for $2,704,532 in the
CDBG fund, $1,118,840 in the HOME fund, and $436,233 in the Commerce Revolving Loan fund.

Uncollectible Amounts

Revenues of the County are reported net of uncollectivle amounts. Total uncollectible amounts
related to revenues of the current period are as follows:

Uncollectibles related to Badger Prairie Health Care Center $ 3,937
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NOTE IV - DeTAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)

B. RECEIVABLES (cont.)
Deferred Revenues

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are
not considered to be available to liquidate labilities of the current period. Property taxes
receivable for the subsequent year are not earned and cannot be used to liquidate hLabilities of
the current period. Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition in connection with
resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, the
various components of deferred revenue and unearned revenue reported in the governmental
funds were as follows:

Unavailable Unearned Totals
Property taxes receivable for subsequent year $ - % 100,856,440 $ 100,856,440
County portion of tax certificates
{inciuding interest) - 1,866,681 1,866,681
Loans receivabie 3,184,605 - 3,184,605
Long-term receivable 675,552 - 675,562
Donations - 214,202 214,202
Total Deferred/Unearned Revenue
for Governmental Funds $ 3,860,157 § 102,937,323 §$ 106,797,480

Taxes

At December 31, 2005, current and delinquent taxes and related interest and penalties
receivable by year of tax levy were as follows;

Current* Delinquent Totals

2005 $ 105,037,263 § - $ 105,037,263
2004 - 4,635,078 4,635,078
2003 - 1,499,510 1,499,510
2002 - 627,387 627,387
2001 - 329,694 329,694
2000 and prior - 328,648 328,648

Total $ 105,037,263 § 7,420,317 $ 112,457,680

* This includes governmental and business-type activities.

Page 58




COUNTY OF DANE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2005

NOTE IV — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)

B. RECEIVABLES (cont.)
Other Accounts Receivable

The other accounts receivable balance in the general fund includes a receivable from the
University of Wisconsin ("UW”) men’'s hockey program for terminating a contract with the Alliant
Energy Center of Dane County for use of the coliseum. The receivable balance of $675,552 is
offset by deferred revenue.

C. RESTRICTED ASSETS

Restricted assets of $58,321 included in the Badger Prairie Health Care Center enterprise fund
at December 31, 2005 consist of patient trust funds which are not legally available to the County
to finance current operations. Restricted assets of $4,940,984 included in the Sanitary Landfill
enterprise fund at December 31, 2005 represents deposits with the State of Wisconsin
Department of Natural Resources for long-term care and closure costs of landfill sites.
Restricted assets of $6,485,426 included in the Airport enterprise fund at December 31, 2005 is
the accumulation of unspent passenger facility charges as authorized by the Federal Aviation
Administration (FAA). The charges are to be used to finance various FAA approved construction
projects.

D. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2005 was as follows:

Beginning
Balance Ending
(As restated)  Additions®  Deletions Balance
Governmental Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 52,090,296 $ 11445175 $ - § 63535471
Construction in progress 35,242,092 1,337,417 35,130,595 1,448 914
Land improvements'"’ 26,907,999 2,287,100 722,500 28,472,599
Totat Capital Assets Not Being
Depreciated 114,240,387 15,069,692 35,853,095 93,456,984
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December 31, 2005

NOTE IV — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)

D. CAPITAL ASSETS (cont.)

Governmental Activities {(cont.)
Capital assets being depreciated
Land improvements
Buildings
200 animals
Machinery and equipment
Roadways — infrastructure
Bridges — infrastructure
Traffic signals — infrastructure
Culverts - infrastructure
Total Other Capital Assets Being
Depreciated

Total Capital Assets at
Historical Cost

Less: Accumulated depreciation for
Land improvements
Buildings
Zoo animals
Machinery and equipment
Roadways
Bridges
Traffic signals
Culverts
Total Accumulated Depreciation

Net Capital Assets
Being Depreciated

Total Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, Net of
Depreciation

Beginning
Balance Ending
(As restated) _Additions'® _ Deletions Balance
$ 9615771 § 54,064 $ - $ 9,669,835
105,576,554 37,389,225 - 142,065,779
364,450 33,550 28,795 369,205
19,150,764 4,154,005 3,136,171 20,168,598
71,965,034 6,860,285 2,167,369 76,657,950
6,493,071 359,527 12,500 6,840,008
3,197,063 409,632 282,882 3,323,813
1,521,900 - - 1,521,900
217,884,607 _ 49,260,288 _ 5,627,717 __ 261,517,178
332,124,994 64,329,980 41,480,812 _ 354,974,162
{4,231,646) (284,062) - (4,515,708)
(33,166,662) (2,679,411) - (35,846,073)
(137,556) (18,705) 25,103 (131,158)
(12,321,499) (1,252,161) 2,782,289  (10,791,371)
(24,421,625) (2,861,042) 1,255,790  (26,026,877)
(2,518,691) (130,523) 12,500 (2,636,714)
(865,763) (77.542) 8,833 (934,472)
(898,940) (30,000) - (928,940)
(78,562,382) _ (7,333,446) _ 4,084,515 _ (81,811,313)
139,322,225 _ 41,926,842 1,543,202 _ 179,705,865

$ 253,562,612 § 56,996,534 § 37,396,297 $ 273,162,849

) This represents the nondepreciable portion (residual value) of the County's roads.

2 $7,093,388 of the current year additions represent infrastructure assets contributed by other
local governments and the state. This is reflected as capital grants and contributions on the
public works line item on the statement of activities. The assets are shown on the statement
of net assets in the governmental activities column.
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NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {cont.)

D. CAPITAL ASSETS (cont.)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:

Governmental Activities

General government $ 499,376
- Human services 211,685
Public safety 1,748,446
Public works, which includes the
depreciation of roadways, bridges, traffic signals, and culverts 3,236,908
Culture, education, and recreation 1,596,426
Conservation and economic development 40,605
Total Governmental Activities Depreciation Expense $_ 7,333,446
Beginning Ending
i Balance Additions Delstions Balance
Business-type Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 20,043,177 § -9 - § 29,043,177
Construction in progress 46,244 975 _ 15,001,349 44,352,105 16,894,219
Total Capital Assets Not Being
Depreciated 75,288,152 _ 15,001,349 _ 44,352,105 45,937,396
Capital assets being depreciated
Land improvements 105,998,324 782,619 24,722 106,756,221
Buildings 49,384,589 61,480,622 53,188 110,812,023
Machinery and equipment 36,243,556 2,118,927 1,327,526 37,034,957
Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 191,626,469 _ 64,382,168 1,406,436 _ 254,603,201
Total Capital Assels at
Historical Cost 266,914,621 79,383,517 _ 45 757,541 300,540,597
Less: Accumulated depreciation for
Land improvements (40,574,292} (3,862,460) 24,722 (44,412,030)
. Buildings {13,919,617) {1,958,013) 53,188 (15,824,442)
Machinery and equipment (18,552,435) _ (2,030,963) 1,000,137 {19,583,261)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (73,046,344) (7.851,436) 1,078,047 {79,819,733)
Net Business-type Capital Assets
Being Depreciated 118,580,125 56,530,732 327,389 174,783,468

Total Business-type Capital Assets,
Net of Depreciation

$ 193,868,277 §$ 71,532,081 $ 44,679,494 § 220,720,864
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NOTE IV — DevaILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {cont.)

D. CAPITAL ASSETS (cont.)
Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:

Business-type Activities

Airport $ 5,427,877
Highway 985,319
Sanitary Landfill 985,608
Badger Prairie Health Care Center 200,755
Printing and services 19,618
Methane gas 232,259
Totat Business-type Activities
Depreciation Expense $ 7,851,436

E. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES/ADVANCES AND TRANSFERS
interfund Receivables/Payables

The foliowing is a schedule of interfund receivables and payables including any overdrafts on
pooled cash and investment accounts:

Recejvable Fund Payable Fund Amount

Non-major Governmental Fund Nen-major Governmental Funds $ 250,616

Enterprise — Highway General 89,410
Special Revenue — Human Services 6,798
Non-major Governmental Funds 1,048
Enterprise — Badger Prairie Health Care Center 354
Enterprise — Sanitary Landfill 39,593
Nen-major Proprietary Fund 3,074

Internal Service — Consolidated Food Service 792

141,069

Enterprise — Sanitary Landfill Enterprise — Badger Prairie Health Care Center 72,863
Total - Fund Financial Statements 464,548
Less: eliminations {366,500)
Total Government-Wide Financial Statements $ 98 048
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities $ -
Business-type Activities Governmental Activities 98,048
Total $ 98,048
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NOTE IV — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)

£. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES/ADVANCES AND TRANSFERS (cont.)
Interfund Receivables/Payables (cont.)

The principal purpose of the land information and sanitary landfill fund receivables are to cover
cash shortages. The principal purpose of the highway fund receivables is to record the billing
amounts due from other funds for services provided.

All remaining balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and
services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, {2) transactions are recorded in the
accounting system, and (3} payments between funds are made. All amounts are due within one
year,

For the statement of net assets, interfund receivable/payable balances which are owed within the
governmental activities or business-type activities are netted and eliminated.

Advances

The sanitary landfill enterprise fund is advancing funds to the consolidated foods fund, which is
an internal service fund. No repayment schedule has been established.

The following is a schedule of interfund advances:

Amount Not
Due Within
Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount One Year
Enterprise — Sanitary Internal Service — Consolidated Foods
Landfill $ 573,536 § 573,536
Totals — Fund and Government-Wide Financial Statements 3 573,536 § 573,536
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities $ -
Business-type Activities Governmental Activities 673,636
Total $ 573,536

=*

The principal purpose of this interfund advance is to provide cash until the consolidated foods
fund is able to generate sufficient revenues to cover expenditures.

For the statement of net assets, interfund advance balances which are owed within the
governmental activities or business-type activities are netted and eliminated.
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NOTE IV — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)

E. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES/ADVANCES AND TRANSFERS {cont.)

Transfers

The following is a schedule of interfund transfers:

Fund Transferred To Fund Transferred From Amount Principal Purpose
General - Enterprise — Methane $ 682,096 Annual transfer of methane gas
Gas fund's net income to general

fund.

Special Revenue - General 43,174,164 Transfer tax subsidy.

Human services

Debt service General 1,974,142 Transfer debt service payments.

Debt service Enterprise — Highway 1,193,112 Transfer funds for
infrastructure debt payment.

Debt service Library 42,045 Transfer funds for library deb!
payment.

Enterprise — Highway General 1,043,000 To transfer debt proceeds to he

used for infrastructure.

Enterprise — Badger General 6,623,855 Transfer tax subsidy.
Prairie health care center

Sub-Total — Fund Financial Statements 54,632,414
Eliminate interfund activity {45,190,351)

Reclassify infrastructure
costs paid by the highway

enterprise fund 1,989,253
Total $ 11,431,316

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities $ 3,864,461

Business-type Activities Governmental Activities (7,566,855}
Total $ (3,702,394)

Generally, transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that collects them to the fund
that the budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from the
funds collecting the receipts to the debt service fund, and (3} use unrestricted revenues collected
in the general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with
budgetary authorizations.
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NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)

F. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Long-term obligations activity for the year ended December 31, 2005 was as follows:

Amaounts
Beginning Ending Due Wlthin
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year
Bonds and Notes Payable
General obligation debt
General $ 130,531,753 $ 14,533,834 § 12,095,295 § 132,970,292 $ 10,517,656
Add/(Subtract) Deferred Amounts For:
Premium on debt 1,871,003 3,773 191,477 1,683,299 -
Discount on debt (340,855} - {40,875) (299,980) -
Sub-totals 132,061,901 14,537,607 12,245,897 134,353.611 10,517,656
Other Liabilities
Vested compensated absences - general 28,798,306 9,847,788 7,590,563 31.055.531 7.866,765
Vested compensated absences - internal
services 193,923 42,903 44 114 192,712 37.726
Claims and judgments (Note V.C.}) - general 70,000 - 70,000 - -
Claims and judgments (Note V.C.) - internal
services 130,000 - 130,000 - -
Disability benefits (Note V.C.) 222,919 - 10,615 212,304 10,615
Capital leases — general (Note IV.G.) 25,944 80,356 50,616 55,684 28,923
Capital leases — internal services
{Note IV.G.) - 27,075 7,361 19.714 6,198
Total Other Liabilities 29,441,092 9,808,122 7,903,269 31,535,945 7,950,227
Total Governmenta! Activities
Long-Term Liabilities $ 161,502,993 $ 24535720 $ 20,149,168 $ 165,889,556 $ 18,467,883
Beginning Amounts
Balance Ending Due Within
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES {As Restated) Increases Decreases Balance One Year
Bonds and Notes Payable
General obligation debt $ 58332191 § - $ 3155434 $% 55176,757 $ 3.185,559
Add Deferred Amounts For:
Premiums on Debt 2,163,690 - 331,551 1,832,139 -
Sub-totals 60,495,881 - 3,486,985 57,008,896 3,185,559
Other Liabilities
Vested compensated absences 6,173,374 1,988,942 1,609,056 6,553,260 1,622 114
Long-term care and posiclosure
care costs payable (Note IV.H.) 4,786,194 1,065,697 46,640 5,805,251 46,640
Other notes payable §7.098 - 33,047 34,051 34,051
Total Other Liabilities 11,026,666 2,054,639 1,688 743 12,382,562 1.702,805
Total Business-type Activities
Long-Term Liabilities $ 71522547 §$ 3054639 § 5175728 $ 69,401,458 $ 4,888,364
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NOTE IV — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)

F. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont.)

General Obligation Debt

All general obligation notes and bonds payable are backed by the full faith and credit of the
County. Notes and bonds in the governmental funds will be retired by future property tax levies
accumulated by the debt service fund. Business-type activities debt is payable by revenues from
user fees of those funds or, if the revenues are not sufficient, by future tax levies.

In accordance with Wisconsin Statutes, total general obligation indebtedness of the County may
not exceed five percent of the equalized value of taxable property within the County's
jurisdiction. The debt limit as of December 31, 2005, was $2,139,986,425. Total general
obligation debt outstanding at year end was $188,147,049.

Governmental Actlvities
General Obligation Debt

General Qbligation Bonds, Series 2005A
2005 State Trust Fund Loan
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2004A
General Obligation Refunding
Promissory Notes, Series 20048
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2003A
General Obligation Promissory Notes,
Series 2003C
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2002A
Taxable General Obligation Bonds,
Series 2002C
Taxable General Obligation Bonds,
Series 2002D
General Obligation Promissory Notes,
Series 2001A
General Obligation Corporate Purpose
Bonds, Series 2001B
General Obligation Corporate
Purpose Bonds, Series 2000
General Obligation Promissory Notes,
Series 19988
1997 State Trust Fund Loan

Date of Final Interest Original Balance
Issue Maturity Rates Indebtedness 12-31-05
07/07/05 06/01/25 3.25-4.30% 14,260,000 $ 14,260,000
11/08/05 03/15/10 3.50% 273,834 273,834
11/01/04  06/01/22  2.00-4.375% 7,032,794 6,538,676
11/01/04 06/01/09  2.75-3.00% 3,021,823 3,021,823
06/26/03  06/01/23 2.00-5.00% 28,480,000 27,035,000
06/26/03  06/01/23 2.00-3.30% 12,279,112 9,221,115
12/01/02  06/01/22 3.00-5.00% 29,922,618 22,910,204
12/01/02  12/01/22 1.75-5.85% 14,175,000 13,610,000
12/01/02 12/01/12 5.15% 4,970,000 4,970,000
09/01/01  03/01/11 4.00-4.30% 2,144,500 1,381,426
03/29/01  09/01/21 4.00-5.00% 3,030,000 2,605,000
11/09/00  09/01/20 5.00-5.50% 11,725,000 9,170,000
09/01/98 03/01/14 4.10-4.50% 19,965,000 17,915,000
01/22/97 03/15/06 5.75% 420,000 58,214

Total Governmental Activities — General Obligation Debt

$ 132,970,292
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F. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS {cont.}

Geoneral Obligation Debt (cont.)

Date of Final Interest Original Balance
Issue Maturity Rates Indebtedness 12-31-05
Business-type Activities
General Obligation Debt
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2004A  11/01/04  06/01/22  2.00-4.375% $ 152,206 $ 121,324
General Obligation Refunding
Promissory Notes, Series 2004B 11/01/04  06/01/09 2.75-3.00% 458,178 458,178
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2003B  06/26/03  06/01/23 3.50-4.75% 25,265,000 25,265,000
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2003C  06/26/03 06/01/23 2.00-3.30% 2,795,888 2,203,885
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2002A  12/01/02  06/01/22 3.00-5.00% 202,382 74,796
General Obligation Bonds, Series 20028  12/01/02  06/01/14 5.00% 29,445,000 26,860,000
General Obligation Promissory Notes,
Purpose Bonds, Serias 2001A 09/01/01  03/01/11 4.00-4.30% 300,500 193,574
Total Business-type Activities General Obligation Debt $ 55,176,757
Debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
General Obligation Debt General Obligation Debt
Years Principal Interest Principal Interest Totals
2006 $ 105617656 § 5809518 § 3,185559 $ 2,440,778 $ 21,953,511
2007 9,879,271 5,258,517 3,233,244 2,294,270 20,665,302
2008 9,550,767 4,917,923 3,262,250 2,144,281 19,875,221
2009 9,000,770 4,584,855 3,229,649 1,991,737 18,807,011
2010 8,793,470 4,249,513 3,239,413 1,837,053 18,119,449
2011 - 2015 40,633,358 15,529,992 22,201,642 6,003,701 84,368,693
2016 - 2020 27,485,000 8,070,796 9,915,000 2,786,725 48,257,521
2021 - 2025 17,110,000 1,386,391 6,910,000 500,888 25,907,279
Totals 3 132,970,292 $_ 49.807.505 $ 55,176,757 $ 19,999,433 § 257,953,987
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F. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS {cont.)
Other Notes Payable - Business-type Activities

Notes payable at December 31, 2005 consist of the following:

Original
Date of Final Interest Indebted- Balance
Issue  Maturity Rate ness 12-31-05
Business-type Activities
Notes Payable
Alliant Energy loan 11/20/01  12/31/06 3% $ 160,500 % 34,051
Total Business-type Activities — Other Notes Payable 5 34,051
Debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:
Business-type Activities
Other Notes Payable
Years Principal Interest
2006 $ 34,051 % 557
Totals $ 34,051 § 557

Capital Leases
Refer to Note IV.G.

Other Debt Information

Estimated payments of other long-term liabilities (vested compensated absences, claims and
judgments, disability benefits, capital leases, long-term care, and postclosure care costs
payable} are not inciuded in the debt service requirements to maturity schedules. The
compensated absences liability attributable to governmental activities will be liquidated primarily
by the general fund and human services fund,

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures and

loan agreements. The County believes it is in compliance with all significant limitations and
restrictions, including federal arbitrage regulations.
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NOTE IV — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)

F. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS {cont.)
Prior-Year Defeasance of Debt

In prior years, the County defeased certain general obligation and other bonds by placing the
proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on
the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust accounti assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are
not included in the County's financial statements. At December 31, 2005, $1,500,000 of bonds
outstanding are considered defeased. The bonds are callable on June 1, 2006,

G. LEASE DISCLOSURES

Lessee — Capital Leases

In current and prior years, the County acquired capital assets through lease/purchase
agreements. The gross amount of these assets under capital leases is $123,996 and are
presented in the capital assets in the governmental activities. The assets acquired through
capital leases are as fotlows:

Governmental
Activities
Asset:
Machinery and equipment $ 123,996
iLess: Accumulated depreciation (20,105)
Total $ 103,891

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value on these minimum lease
payments as of December 31, 2005, are as follows:

Governmental
Principal Interest Activities

2006 $ 35,121 ¢ 4126 § 39,247
2007 33,326 2,208 35,534
2008 6,951 410 7,361
Sub-Totals $§ 75398 % 6,744 82,142
Less: Amount representing interest {6,744)
Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments $ 75,398

Lessee - Operating Leases

The County has no material operating leases with a remaining noncancellable term exceeding
one year.
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NOTE IV — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)

G. LEASE DISCLOSURES (cont.)

Lessor - Airport Leases

The County is a lessor of certain airport facilities such as terminal concession space,
warehouses and hangars under various operating leases. Lease terms vary with lease expiration
dates ranging from 2006 through 2086. Revenues and related expenses for these leases are
recorded in the airport fund.

Future minimum lease payments to be received under noncancellable operating leases as of
December 31, 2005, are as follows:

Year Ending
December 31,
2006 $ 1,664,164
2007 1,313,064
2008 1,293,076
2009 1,218,794
2010 1,009,648
Thereafter 56,517,312
Total Future Minimum Rentals $ 63,016,058

The amounts above do not include contingent rentals based on usage or sales dollars which may
be received under certain leases. Contingent rentals approximated $6,546,500 for the year
ended December 31, 2005.

H. CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COST

State and federatl laws and regulations require the County to place a final cover on its Rodefeld
and Verona landfill sites when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and
menitoring functions at the sites after closure. Although closure and postclosure care costs will
be paid only near or after the date that the landfill stops accepling waste, the County reports a
portion of these closure and postclosure care costs as an operating expense in each period
based on landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet date.

The $4,779,171 reported as landfill ¢closure and postclosure care liability at December 31, 2005
for the Rodefeld landfill, represents the cumulative amount reported to date based on the use of
79.06 percent of the estimated capacity of the landfill. The County will recognize the remaining
estimated cost of closure and postclosure care of $1,265,821 as the remaining estimated
capacity is filled. These amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all closure and
postclosure care in 2005. The County expects to close the landfill in the year 2015, Actual cost
may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in regulations.

The $1,026,080 reported as landfill postclosure care costs payable at December 31, 2005 for the
Verona landfill represents the costs to be incurred for postclosure care on this closed landfill.
The County closed the landfill in the year 1988. Actual cost may be higher due to inflation,
changes in technology, or changes in regulations.
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NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FuNDS (cont.)

H. CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COST (cont.)

The County is required by state and federal laws and regulations to make annual contributions to
a trust to finance closure and postclosure care. The County is in compliance with these
requirements, and, at December 31, 2005 deposits with the Wisconsin Department of Natural
Resources of $4,894,344, which approximates fair market value, are held for the Rodefeld and
Verona landfills for these purposes. These are reported as restricted assets on the statement of
net assets. The County expects that future inflation costs will be paid from interest earnings on
these annual contributions. However, if interest earnings are inadequate or additional
postclosure care requirements are determined {due to changes in technology or applicable laws
or regulations, for example) these costs may need to be covered by charges to future landfill
users or from future tax revenue,

f. GOVERNMENTAL AND BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES NET ASSETS/FUND BALANCES

Governmental and business-type activities net assets reported on the government wide
statement of net assets at December 31, 2005 includes the following:

Governmental Activities

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Land $ 63,535,471
Construction in progress 1,448,914
Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 208,178,464
Less: Related long-term debt outstanding, premium,
discount, and issuance costs (excluding unspent bond proceeds) (98,492,805)
Total Invested in Capital Assets 174,670,044
Restricted
Nonmajor Funds
Board of health 1,003,039
Library 35,679
Land information 1,406,558
Bridge aid 169,897
CDBG loans 1,629,532
HOME 1,118,840
Commerce revolving loan 573,491
Scheidegger trust fund 436,052
Total Restricted 6,272,988
Unrestricted {deficit) (13,227,438}
Total Governmental Activities Net Assets $ 167,715,594
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NOTE IV - DETAILED NOTES ON ALt FUNDS (cont.)

Maijor Funds

General Fund
Human Services
Debt Service
Capital Projects

Non Major Funds
Board of Health
Library

Land Information
Bridge Aid

CDBG Loans
HOME

Commerce — Revolving Loan

Scheidegger Trust
Total

Tax deed sales

Governmental Activities {cont.)

I. GOVERNMENTAL AND BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES NET ASSETS/FUND BALANCES (cont.)

Governmental fund halances reported on the fund financ¢ial statement at December 31, 2005 include the following:

Reserved
Prepaid Delinquent Long-Term Dabt Trust Undesignated
Encymbrances llems Taxes Receivables Service __Purposes Designated {Deficil} Totals
$ 566,006 3 8,203 § 4,118,326 § 688,761 § -% -3 8942186 § 14,679,746 § 29,003,298
- 10,427 - - - - - 162,665 173,092
- - - - 588,231 - - - 588,231
2,776,535 - . . . - - 16,775,130 19,551,665
524,290 - - - - - - 478,749 1,003,039
- - - - - - - 35,579 35,579
68,871 - - - - - - 1,337,687 1,406,558
- - - - - - - 169,897 169,897
482,466 - - - - - . {568,247) {85,781)
614,241 - B - - - - {629,803) {15.562)
- . - - - - - 137,258 137,258
- - - - - 436,052 - - 436,052
$ 50324008 186305 4118,326 § 688,761 § 588,231 § 436,052 § 85942166 3 32,578,661 § 52,403,326

Fund balance applied to the 2006 budget

Alliant Energy Center
Carry forwards to 2006

Totai

$

The general fund’s designated fund balance is comprised of the following:

116,446
5,131,639
1,777,683
1,916,398

——

$ 8,942,166
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NOTE IV — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (cont.)

i GOVERNMENTAL AND BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES NET ASSETS/FUND BALANCES (cont.)

Business-type Activities
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Land $ 29,043,177
Construction in progress 16,894,219
Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 174,783,468
{ ess: related long-term debt outstanding, premium, discount, and
issuance costs (excluding unspent capital related debt proceeds) {56,581,989)
Total Invested in Capital Assets 164,138,875
Restricted
Airport:
Capital projects 6,485,426
Sanitary Landfill:
Long-term care costs 41,149
Total Restricted 6,526,575
Unrestricted 39,482,196
Total Business-type Activities Net Assets $ 210,147,646

J. RESTATEMENT OF FUND BALANCES/NET ASSETS

Net assets have been restated in the Governmenta! Activities, due to the addition of a salvage
value on capital assets, adjustments to capital assets, and to correct a liability classification.
Also, the business-type activities, printing and services fund, methane gas fund, Badger Prairie
heaith care fund, sanitary landfili fund, airport fund, and the consolidated food service fund have
been restated due to the addition of a salvage value on capital assets.

Net Assets — Governmental Activitles

December 31, 2004 (as reported) $ 152,905,042
Add: Salvage value associated with capital assets 4,511,267
Add: Other capital asset adjustments 244,616
Add: Amount reported as a liability in prior years 965,405

Net Asseis - January 1, 2005 (as restated) $ 158,626,330
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J. RESTATEMENT OF FUND BALANCES/NET ASSETS (cont.)
Net Assets — Business-type Activities

December 31, 2004 (as reported)
Add: Salvage value associated with capital assets

Net Assets — January 1, 2005 (as restated)

Net Assets - Airport

December 31, 2004 (as reported)
Add: Salvage value associated with capital assets

Net Assets — January 1, 2005 {(as restated)

Net Assets — Sanitary Landfill

December 31, 2004 (as reported)
Add: Salvage value associated with capital assets

Net Assets — January 1, 2005 (as restated)
Net Assets — Badger Prairie Health Care

December 31, 2004 (as reported)
Add: Salvage value associated with capital assets

Net Assets — January 1, 2005 (as restated)
Net Assets — Printing and Services

December 31, 2004 (as reported)
Add: Salvage value associated with capital assets

Net Assets — January 1, 2005 (as restated)
Net Assets — Methane Gas

December 31, 2004 (as reported)
Add: Salvage value associated with capital assets

Net Assets — January 1, 2005 (as restated)

$ 180,644,197
8,029,710
$ 188,673,907

$ 152,709,504
6,497,396
$ 159,206,900

$ 15,214,732
1,206,792

$ 16,421,524
$ 82,450
172,626

$ 255,076
$ 134,553
63,331

$ 187,884
$ 2,194,130
99,565

$ 2,293,695
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J. RESTATEMENT OF FUND BALANCES/NET ASSETS (cont.)

Net Assets — Consolldated Food Service

December 31, 2004 (as reported) $ 909,163
Add:; Salvage value associated with capital assets 129,722
Net Assets — January 1, 2005 {as restated) 3 1,038,885

Fund balance has been restated due to the improper classification of a liability.

Human Services Fund

Fund Balance - December 31, 2004 (as reported) $ 86,334
Add: Amount reported as a liability in prior years 965,405
Fund Balance — January 1, 2005 (as restated) $ 1,051,739

K. COMPONENT UNIT - DANE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY

This report contains the Dane County Housing Authority (Authority), which is included as a
component unit. Financial information combined with the Henry Vilas Park Zoological Society,
Inc., also a component unit of the County, and is presented as a discrete column in the
statement of net assets and statement of activities.

In addition to the basic financial statements and the preceding notes to financial statements
which apply, the following additional disclosures are considered necessary for a fair
presentation,

a. Basis of Accounting/Measurement Focus
The authority follows the full accrual basis of accounting and the flow of economic
resources measurement focus.

b. Deposits and Investments

Carrying Bank
Value Balance Associated Risks
Demand deposits $ 1046312 $ 1,069,862 Custodial
1LGIP 101,410 101,410 Credit and interest rate

Total Deposits and Investments $ 1,147,722 $ 1,171,272
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NOTE IV — DETAILED NOTES ON AtL FUNDS (cont.)

K. COMPONENT UNIT — DANE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY (cont.)
b. Deposits and Investments {cont.)
Custodial Credit Risk
Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a financial institution failure, the Housing
Authority’s deposits may not be returned to the Housing Authority.

As of December 31, 2005 $9,161 of the Housing Authority’s total bank balances of $1,069,862
was exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

Uninsured and uncollateralized $§ 9,161

Investments
For an investment, custedial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the Housing Authority will not be able to recover the value of its investments or
coltateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.
The Housing Authority does not have any investments exposed to custodial credit risk,
Credit Risk

The Housing Authority held investments in the following external pools which are not rated:

Local Government Investment Pool

Interest Rate Risk

As of December 31, 2005 the Housing Authority's investments were rated as follows:

Weighted
Average
Maturity
Investment Type Fair Value (Years)
External investment pools $ 101,410 0.0887
Total $ 101,410
Portfolio weighted average maturity 0.09

The Housing Authority does not have an investment policy.
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K. COMPONENT UNIT — DANE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY {cont.)
¢. Section 8 Funding

Section 8 funding provided by HUD represents a majority of DCHA's revenue. If DCHA’s
Section 8 contracts were reduced or discontinued, DCHA would have no obligation to
make payments to landlords or other external parties. Nevertheless, such a reduction in
Section 8 funding could have a substantial effect on the activities of DCHA,

d. Conduit Debt

DCHA has authorized several developers to issue bonds using DCHA's credit. The
proceeds of these bonds were used for housing projects that serve elderly or low-income
tenants. The bonds do not constitute an indebtedness or pledge of the faith and credit of
DCHA, The amount of principal balance outstanding at December 31, 2005 has not been
determined.

e. Loans Recsivable

DCHA loans money to homeowners and landlords and receives mortgage-backed notes
receivable in exchange. These loans were made from funds originally provided by federal
grant programs. The note agreements specify repayment terms, including installment
payments and payment in fuli upon transfer of the property, and in some instances are
non-interest-bearing. When the notes are repaid, the funds become the property of DCHA
and are restricted for future rehabilitation projects.

Loans receivable and activity therein consisted of the following:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Community Development
Bilock Grant
1976 Homeowners $ 65134 % - % - % 65,134
1982 Homeowners 119,219 - 17,858 101,361
1982 Habitat for Humanity 20,800 - 14,400 6,400
HUD Section 17 Rental Rehab 22,947 - 1,939 21,008
Loans Receivable $ 228100 $ - $ 34197 § 193,903
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K. COMPONENT UNtT — DANE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY (cont.)

Beginning Ending Useful Lives

Balance Additions Deletions Balance (Years)
Land and improvements $1,191,500 $ 5931 § - $1,197,431 N/A
Buildings 5,824,604 - - 5,824,604 27.5
Equipment 149,124 13,384 - 162,508 5-15
Work in progress 19,926 29,907 19,926 29,907 N/A
Property and equipment 7,185,154 49,222 19,926 7,214,450
Less: Accumulated depreciation (4,752,228) (252,897) - (5,005,125)

f.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, and activity therein, consisted of the following:

Property and Equipment —net § 2,432,926 $ (203,675 § 19,926 § 2,209,325

g.

e v —

Long-Term Obligations

Notes payable at December 31, 2005 consisted of a mortgage payable to the U.S.
Department of Agriculture — Rural Housing Service in monthly installments of $3,979,
including interest at 11%. The note is secured by real estate and matures in December
2030. The U.5. government subsidizes payments of principal and interest on the note.

Principal payments on the Rural Housing loan during 2005 were $35,984. Interest
expense was as follows for 2005;

Base amount required by loan agreement $ 11,759
Excess rents applied to interest -
Amount paid by DCHA 11,759
U.S. government interest subsidy 11,759

Interest Expense $ -

Future principal payments cannot presently be determined. See Note IV.K.h.

Contingency

DCHA is party to a revolving loan agreement with Dane County Community Development
Block Grant (CDBG). Revolving loan funds are used for lead-based paint abatement and
other public housing and group home improvements. The revolving ioan balance at
December 31, 2005 was $187,000. The loan is non-interest-bearing, and no payments
are required until the properties are sold. Based on past experience with CDBG in similar
circumstances, management of DCHA has determined that were these properties to be
sold, the proceeds would most likely be used by DCHA to support other activities in the
Major Rehabilitation CDBG Fund. Therefore, the revolving loan balance has been
included in the restricted net assets of this fund.
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K. COMPONENT UNiT — DANE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY {(cont.)

h.

Contingency (cont.)

The United States Department of Agriculture informed the Authority that it miscalculated
the portion of the subsidy and payment applied to the principal and interest on the
Authority’s Rural Housing loan. The USDA cannot presently determine what portion, if
any, of the subsidy will be reallocated from principal to interest expense; however, the
amount of the loss will not exceed $313,000. Since the amount of the loss cannot be
determined, no amounts have been reflected in the financial statements.

Employee Retirement System

All eligible DCHA employees participate in the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS), a
cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system. All permanent
employees expected to work over 600 hours per year are eligible to participate in WRS.
Covered employees are required by statute to contribute 5.6% of their salary to the Plan
for 2005. Employers may make these confributions to the Plan on behalf of the
employees,

Employers are required to contribute an actuarially determined amount necessary to fund
the remaining projected cost of future benefits. For 2005, the payroll for DCHA
employees covered by the system was $490,250; the employer's total payroll was
$493,343. The total required contribution for 2005 was $55,889, which consisted of
$27,454 or 5.6% of payroll from the employer and $28,435 or 5.8% of payroll from
employees, Total contributions for the years ending December 31, 2005 and 2004 were
$53,555 and $48,793, respectively, equal to the required contribution for each year.

Employees who retire at or after age 65 are entitled to receive a retirement benefit.
Employees may retire at age 55 and receive actuarially reduced benefits. The factors
influencing the benefit are: (1) final average earnings, {2) years of creditable service, and
(3) a formula factor. Fina! average earnings is the average of the employee's three
highest years of earnings. Employees terminating covered employment before becoming
eligible for a retirement benefit may withdraw their contributions and, by doing so, forfeit
all rights to any subsequent benefit. For employees beginning participation on or after
January 1, 1990 and no longer actively employed on or after April 24, 1998, creditable
service in each of five years is required for eligibility for a retirement annuity. Participants
employed prior to 1990 and on or after April 24, 1998 are immediately vested.
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K.

COMPONENT UNIT — DANE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY (cont.)

Employee Retirement System (cont.)

WRS uses the “Entry Age Normal with Frozen Initial Liability” actuarial method in
establishing employer contribution rates. Under this method, the unfunded actuarial
accrued liability (pension-related debt) is affected only by the monthly amortization
payments, compound interest, the added liability created by new employer units, and any
liabilities caused by a change in benefit provisions. All actuariai gains or losses arising
frorn the difference between actual and assumed experience are reflected in the
determination of the normal cost. Employers’ pension-related debt for prier service costs
is being amortized over a 40-year period beginning January 1, 1980. Historical trend
information showing WRSs progress in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits is
presented in its annual financial report. As of December 31, 2005, pension-related debt
for DCHA was $170,060 {current portion $7,874). This liability was determined in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 27 regarding pension-refated debt. The actuarial
methods and assumptions used are unchanged from those used prior to the
implementation of GASB Statement No. 27.

Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pension Benefits

In addition to the pension benefits provided to employees through the Wisconsin
Retirement System, DCHA provides post-employment health insurance benefits to retired
employees with accumulated unused sick pay. These benefits are available until the
employee uses up unused sick pay. Currently, two retirees meet these eligibility
requirements, DCHA pays the total cost of the insurance and is obligated for benefits
under both union and individual employment contracts. The amount of benefits paid for
the year was $6,256 for 2005,

Expenditures for the benefit described are recognized on a pay-as-you-go basis. The
estimated future liability for currently eligible retired employees is reported in the
accumulated vacation and sick pay. No liability has been computed for employees not yet
retired, since DCHA is only obligated to pay this benefit paid to those employees who
have retired from DCHA.

Operating Lease

DCHA leases facilities for operation of its programs. This lease is classified as an
operating lease. Rent expense for the year ended December 31, 2005 was $80,223.

Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

2006 $ 47,606
Total $_ 47,606
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L.

Risk Management

DCHA is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; workers' compensation; and health care of its
employees. All of these risks are covered through the purchase of commercial insurance,
with minimal deductibles. Settied claims have not exceeded the commercial coverage in
any of the past three years. There were no significant reductions in coverage compared to
the prior year.

Line of Credit

DCHA established a $300,000 line of credit in 2005 with interest at the prime rate. The
line of credit is secured by real estate and terminates in August 2005. There were no
borrowings against the line of credit in 2005.

Subsequent Events
In February 2006, the Authority sold its Devonshire group home for $210,000.

In April 2006, the Authority had an accepted offer to purchase an office buiiding for
$853,000 subject to three contingencies. The contingencies are to obtain financing, pass
a building inspection and the approval of the board of directors.

COMPONENT UNIT - HENRY VILAS PARK ZOOLOGICAL SOCIETY, INC,

This report cantains the Henry Viias Park Zoological Society, Inc. (the Society), which is included
as a component unit. Financial information is combined with the Dane County Housing Authority,
also a component unit of the County, and is presented as a discrete column in the statement of
net assets and statement of activities.

In addition to the basic financiai statements and the preceding notes to financial statemenis
which apply, the fellowing additional disclosures are considered necessary for a fair
presentation.

a.

Nature of Activities

Henry Vilas Park Zoological Society, Inc. {the Society) is incorporated as a not-for-profit
organization. The purpose of the Society is to educate the public in zoology and stimulate
interest and appreciation of the animal kingdom. The Society uses its net contributions
and receipts for the improvement, enlargements, maintenance, and construction of
buildings and facilities for the Henry Vilas Park Zooc (the Zoo), the replacement and
acquisition of animals for the Zoo, and to fund the educational programs and efforts of the
Society. The Zoo is located in Madison, Wisconsin and is owned and operated by the
County of Dane.
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NOTE IV — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {cont.)

L,

b.

COMPONENT UNIT - HENRY VILAS PARK ZOOLOGICAL SOCIETY, INC. (cont.)
A summary of the Society's significant accounting policies follows:

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenue and expenses, including functional allocations during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Inventories: inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market using the first-in, first-
out (FIFO} method.

Equipment: Equipment which exceeds $500 is recorded at cost when purchased and at
fair market value when received through donation. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Contributions; Contributions of cash and other assets are recorded as revenue when
received or unconditionally pledged. Conditional promises to give are not included as
support until such time as the conditions are substantially met.

Pledges Receivable: Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected
within one year are recorded at net realizabie value. Unconditional promises to give that
are expected to be collected in future years are recorded at the present value of estimated
future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using a risk-free interest
rate applicable to the year in which the promise is received. Amortization of the discount
is included in contribution revenue.

Ciassification of Net Assets; The Society reports its net assets and 6hanges therein in the
following categories:

Unrestricted Net Assels — Unrestricted net assets represent resources that are
generally available for support of the Society’s activities.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets — Gifts of cash and other assets are reported as
restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of
the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated
time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted
net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement
of activities as net assets released from restrictions. If a restriction is fulfilied in the
same time period in which the contribution is received, the contribution is reported
as unrestricted.
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L. COMPONENT UNIT - HENRY VILAS PARK ZOOLOGICAL SOCIETY, INC, (cont.}
¢c. Resftricted Cash and Investments

As of March 31, 2005, the Society had a cash account totaling $65,450, which is restricted
for animal replacement for the zoo.

d. Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets were available for expenditures related to the polar bears
exhibit, children's zo00, and other projects at March 31, 2005.

e. Conceniration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Society to credit risk consist principally of
a money market fund, certificates of deposit, and cash deposits in financiatl institutions, The
balances in the money market fund, the certificates of deposit, and cash deposits at certain
financial institution are in excess of amounts insured by the FDIC.

f. Concessions Income Agreement and Due for Zoo Improvements

Any and all profits derived from the operation of the concessions stand by the Society are
to be expended for capital improvements to and/or animal acquisitions for the Zoo, under
an agreement with the County of Dane. Such expenditures are made for projects mutually
agreeable to the Society and the County of Dane Zoo Director and become the property of
the County of Dane. As of March 31, 2005, all profits derived from the concessions stand
operation by the Society were expended or incurred for capital improvements to and/or
animal acquisitions for the Zoo. Those expenditures are included with contributions to the
Zoo in the accompanying statements of activities.

Similarly, the Society raises contributions and other support to expend on projects mutually
agreeable to the Society and the County of Dane with such improvements or animals
becoming the property of the County of Dane. The estimated payable for Zoo
improvements to the County of Dane was $7,083 as of March 31, 2005.

g. Contributed Services

The Society recognizes contribution revenue for certain services received at the fair value
of those services. Those services primarily consist of skilled labor used in conducting
special events or to enhance non-financial assets, which are then contributed to the County
of Dane. The total amount of those services for the years ended March 31, 2005 was
$162,651. Additionally, the Society received volunteer time provided by various individuals
during 2005, who gave their time to the Society's programs, administration, and fund
raising campaigns. No amounts have been reflected in the statements for these donated
services since no objective basis is available to measure the value of such services.
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A. EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM

All eligible County employees participate in the Wisconsin Retirement System (System}, a cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit public employee retirement system (PERS). All
permanent employees expected to work over 600 hours a year are eligible to participate in the
System. Covered employees in the General category are required by statute to contribute 5.6%
of their salary (2.6% for Executives and Elected Officialis, 4.5% for Protective Occupations with
Social Security, and 3.2% for Protective Occupations without Social Security) to the ptan.

Employers generally make these contributions to the plan on behalf of employees. Employers are
required to contribute an actuarially determined amount necessary to fund the remaining
projected cost of future benefits.

The payroll for County employees covered by the system for the year ended December 31, 2005
was $101,832,458; the employer’s total payroll was $103,122,342. The total required contribution
for the year ended December 31, 2005 was $12,821,359 or 12.6 percent of covered payroll. Of
this amount, 100 percent was contributed by the employer for the current year. Total
contributions for the years ending December 31, 2004 and 2003 were $12,033,529 and
$10,874,708, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year,

Employees who retire at or after age 65 (62 for elected officials and 55 for protective occupation
employees) are entitled to receive a retirement benefit. Employees may retire at age 55 (50 for
protective occupation employees) and receive actuarially reduced benefits. The factors
influencing the benefit are: (1) final average earnings, (2) years of creditable service, and (3) a
formula factor. Final average earnings are the average of the employee's three highest year's
earnings. Employees terminating covered employment before becoming eligible for a retirement
benefit may withdraw their contributions and, by doing so, forfeit all rights to any subsequent
benefit. For employees beginning participation on or after January 1, 1980 and no longer actively
employed on or after April 24, 1998, creditable service in each of five years is required for
eligibility for a retirement annuity. Participants employed prior to 1990 and on or after April 24,
1998 are immediately vested.

The System also provides death and disability benefits for employees. Eligibility for and the
amount of all benefits is determined under Chapter 40 of Wisconsin Statutes. The System issues
an annual financial report which may be obtained by writing to the Department of Employee Trust
Funds, P.O. Box 7931, Madison, W1 53707-7931.

The unfunded prior service liability for the County as of December 31, 2005, was 3$-0-. The
County paid off the unfunded prior service liability in 2004,

Page 84




COUNTY OF DANE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2005

NOTE V - OTHER INFORMATION {cont.)

B. RiISK MANAGEMENT

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; workers compensation; and health care of its employees. The
County is self-insured for workers' compensation and accounts for such activity in the Workers'
Compensation internat service fund. The County participates in a public entity risk pool called
WMMIC to provide coverage for losses from torts; errors and omissions; and public liability
claims arising subsequent to January 1, 1991. The County purchases commercial insurance for
all other risks. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance
coverage in any of the past three years. There were no significant reductions in coverage
compared to the prior year,

Public Entity Risk Pool

Wisconsin Municipal Mutual Insurance Company (WMMIC) is a mutual company operating solely
within the property and liability insurance industry. WMMIC was organized to provide property
and liability insurance and risk management services to participant municipalities. The aggregate
annual maximum coverage per municipality is $5,000,000. At December 31, 2005, WMMIC was
owned by fourteen municipalities. Responsibility for the operation and management of WMMIC is
vested in its board of directors which is comprised of various municipal officials.

WMMIC was formed pursuant {o an Intergovernmental Charter-Contract dated November 1, 1987
by municipal members, WMMICs initial capitalization was obtained by a $13,935,000 tax exempt
Revenue Bond issuance, WMMIC forwarded the proceeds of the issuance to Fuji Bank, Ltd. {the
"Bank"} in return for a letter of credit. Payment of all principal and up to 185 days of interest on
the bonds is fully secured by the letter of credit, WMMIC is only contingently liable for payment
on the bond indebtedness in the event of failure of the Bank.

Concurrent with Revenue Bond issuance, the municipal members of WMMIC borrowed an
equivalent aggregate amount from the Bank and invested the net proceeds in WMMIC. The
municipal members are obligated to make principal and interest payments on their indebtedness
to the Bank in an amount which is identical to the debt service on the Revenue Bonds.

WMMIC is self-insured for all insurance risks up to a maximum of $5,000,000 of losses involving
two or more of its members. Losses paid by WMMIC plus administrative costs will be recovered
through premiums of the participating pool of municipalities. The County’s share of such losses
is 10.59%. A list of other members and their share of participation is in the WMMIC report.
Financial statements of WMMIC are available from; Wisconsin Municipal Mutual Insurance
Company, 4785 Hayes Road, Madison, W| 53704-7364.

The County's investment in WMMIC is reported on the statement of net assets as a deposit. The
amount reported is the original capitalization of $1,809,171.

All funds of the County participate in the risk management program and make payments to the
Workers’ Compensation and Liability Insurance internal service funds. Workers' Compensation
charges are based primarily on payroll and worker classification. Charges for general liabiiity are
based primarily on exposure and claims experience,
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B. RiISK MANAGEMENT {cont.)
Public Entity Risk Pool (cont.)

The claims liabilities for general liability and workers’ compensation are actuarially determined
using a discount rate of 6%. At December 31, 2005, the County has recognized $1,859,642 in
claims liabilities for general liability, including the WMMIC SIR liability, and has reported
$4,086,097 as retained earnings reserved for self-insurance losses related te general liability. In
addition, at December 31, 2005, the County has recognized $1,919,497 of incurred but not
reported claims liabilities for workers’ compensation and has retained earnings of $391,536 for
self insurance losses related to workers’ compensation.

Liabilities of the funds are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount
of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been
incurred but not reported (IBNR). Claim liabilities are calculated considering the effects of
inflation, recent claim settlement trends including frequency and amount of pay-outs and other
economic and social factors. Changes in the claims liability balances during the past two fiscal
years are as follows:

Workers' Compensation Liability
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2005 2004 2005 2004
Unpaid claims, beginning of
fiscal year $ 1456966 $ 2537419 § 1,538,098 § 2,334,559
Incurred claims (including IBNRs)
and changes in estimates 2,298,450 (7,863) 493,402 {501,903)
Claim payments {1,835,919) {1,072,590) {171,858) _(294,558)
Unpaid Claims, End of Fiscal
Year $ 1919497 § 1456966 $ 1859642 §$ 1.538,008

C. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

From time to time, the County is party to various pending claims and legal proceedings. Although
the outcome of such matters cannot be forecasted with certainty, it is the opinion of management
and the County Attorney that the likelihood is remote that any such claims or proceedings will
have a material adverse effect on the County's financial position or results of operations.

The County has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to review
and audit by the grantor agencies. Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursements to the
grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grants, Management believes
such disallowances, if any, would be immaterial.

Page 86




COUNTY OF DANE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2005

NOTE V — OTHER INFORMATION (cont.)

C. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (cont.)

During 2005, the County borrowed $14,421,534 for the purpose of making various capital
improvements. These monies, as well as other revenue sources, are reftected in the County's
capital projects fund ($13,378,534) and the general fund ($1,043,000). Work that has been
completed but not yet paid for (including contract retainages} is reflected as accounts payable
and expenditures. The balance of contract amounts plus open purchase orders is reported as
reserved for encumbrances in the governmental fund financial statements.

Funding for the operating budget of the County comes from many sources, including property
taxes, grants and aids from other units of government, user fees, fines and permits, and other
miscellaneous revenues, The State of Wisconsin provides a variety of aid and grant programs
which benefit the County. Those aid and grant programs are dependent on continued approval
and funding by the Wisconsin governor and legislature, through their budget processes. The
State of Wisconsin is currently experiencing budget problems, and is considering numerous
alternatives including reducing aid to local governments. Any changes made by the State to
funding or eligibility of local aid programs could have a significant impact on the future operating
results of the County.

The County is required by State Statutes to provide financial assistance for medical costs
incurred by qualifying County residents. The County reimburses health care facilities directly for
services provided to such residents. The County's liability related to medical services is based on
the County's determination of individual patient eligibility, which may be disputed by the health
care providers. Therefore, the liability recorded at December 31, 2005, represents the County's
estimate of the amount due to such providers.

In 1998, the University of Wisconsin ("UW”) terminated a contract with the Alliant Energy Center
of Dane County for the use of the coliseum for the men’s hockey program. In settlement, the
County will receive $500,000 per year through the year 2006. In conjunction with the termination
of the UW contract, the County was sued by the concessionaire for breach of contract. The
County has agreed to pay the concessionaire $200,000 per year for a total of $1,400,000 over
the remaining term of that contract. The County has made payments to date of $1,400,000. The
balance due as of December 31, 2005 is $-0-.

Under the terms of a stipulation order issued by the State of Wisconsin Department of Industry,
Labor, and Human Relations, the County is making monthly payments to a former Deputy Sheriff.
The payments under this order are $885 per month. The payments are due for the life of the
ex-deputy sheriff. $212,304 has been included as governmental activities long-term obligations.

The airport maintains receivable balances with several airlines that have filed bankruptcy and are

attempting to restructure. An allowance for doubtful accounts has not been established since the
County believes it will still be able to collect on the receivable balances.
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D. HENRY ViLas 200

In 1983, the County entered into an agreement with the City of Madison for the joint operation of
the Henry Vilas Zoo (the “Zoo”). The purpose of the agreement was to transfer substantial
control, authority, and funding of the Zoo from the City of Madison to the County. This transfer
became effective January 1, 1987, when the County's authority and responsibility for the Zoo
was extended to include budgetary approval, administrative support and ownership of property.
Under the terms of the agreement, the portion of County funding to maintain and operate the Zoo
will remain at 80%, with the City funding the remaining 20%. The activities of the Zoo are
accounted for in the general fund.

This agreement may be terminated by either party effective at the beginning of any calendar
year, provided at least fourtesen months advance notice is given. In the event of termination of
the agreement, all assets shall revert to the City of Madison. This agreement is automatically
renewable on an annual basis.

E. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On February 15, 2006, the County issued general obligation notes in the amount of $9,200,000
with an interest rate of 4%. This amount will be used to fund various capital projects.

Also on February 15, 2006, the County issued general cobligation bonds in the amount of
$17,780,000 with an interest rate varying from 4.000-4,375%. A portion of this issue will be used
to refund the 2000 general obligation bonds. The remainder will be used to fund various capital
projects.

F. RELATED ENTITIES

Administrative offices, court facillties and the maximum security jail of the County are housed in
a building which includes similar facilities for the City of Madison. Certain occupancy expenses
are reimbursed by the City of Madison and have been recorded as operating revenues rather
than as an offset against County expenditures,

G. PuBLIC HEALTH MERGER
During 2005, the City of Madison, Wisconsin and Dane County merged their public health
departments te avoid duplication of services and improve operational efficiencies. Subsequent

agreements between the City and County will be executed to govern later phases with full
integration into a city-county health department by December 31, 2007,
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COUNTY OF DANE

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005

REVENUES
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Public charges for services
Fines, forfeitures and penalties
Licenses and permits
Invastment income
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
General government
Health and human services
Public safety and criminal justice
Public works
Culture, education and recreation
Conservation and economic development
Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {(USES)
General obligation debt issued

Capital lease

Transfers in

Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources {Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance
FUND BALANCE - Baginning

FUND BALANCE - ENDING

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Qriginal Final Actual Final Budget
$ 124,821,826 § 124,821,826 § 124,554,482 §  (267,344)
20,363,179 29,326,760 22,902,356 (6,424,404)
16,419,138 15,625,802 15,275,482 {350,320)
2,438,100 2,438,100 2,145,341 {292,759)
742,950 758,850 918,560 160,010
1,516,100 1,516,100 2,507,950 991,850
4,594,261 5,104,665 4,741,217 (363,448}
170,895,554 179,592,203 173,045,788 {6,546.415)
22,704,837 23,133,062 22,171,120 961,942
420,026 449,195 397,978 51,217
72,507,464 74,330,031 77,015,660 (2,685,629)
662,831 813,391 855,549 (42,158)
15,367,127 17,284,200 13,872,611 3,411,589
4,161,167 8,417,697 4,050,274 4,367,423
735,600 2,901,023 1,501,800 1,399,223
116,559,052 127,328,599 119,864,992 7,463,607
54,336,502 52,263,604 53,180,796 917,192
- - 1,043,000 1,043,000
- 22,354 12,307 (10,047)
728,300 728,300 682,006 (46,204)
(57,575,373} {67.575,373) __ (52,715,161) 4,860,212
(56,847,073) (56,824,719) __(50.877,758) 5,846 961
(2,510,571) {4,561,115) 2,203,038 6,764,153
26,800,260 26,800,260 26,800,260 -
$ 24280680 $ 22239145 $ 29003,298 $ 6,764,153
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Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ 136,743,855 § 142,141,680 $ 145,883,383 § 3,741,703
Public charges for services 106,500 106,500 149,277 42,777
Miscellaneous 4,473,019 4,482,213 4,035,249 {446 ,964)
Total Revenues 141,323,374 146,730,393 150,067,909 3,337,516
EXPENDITURES
Current
Health and Human Services
Personal services 27,131,061 27,523,171 26,778,366 744,805
Contractual services 162,258,552 167,253,603 162,967,940 4,285,663
Other 1,943,652 2,058,355 4,424,440 (2,366,085)
Total Health and Human Services 191,333,265 196,835,129 194,170,746 2,664,383
Capital Outiay 3,000 3,000 2,065 935
Total Expenditures 191,336,265 196,838,129 194,172,811 2,665,318
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures (50,012,891) (50,107,736)  (44,104,902) 6,002,834
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Capitat lease - - 52,091 52,001
Transfers in 50,176,372 50,176,372 43,174,164 (7,002,208}
Total Other Financing Sources 50,176,372 50,176,372 43,226,255 (6,950,117)
Net Change in Fund Balance 163,481 68,636 (878,647) (947,283)
FUND BALANCE - Beginning 1,051,739 1,051,739 1,051,739 -
FUND BALANCE - ENDING $ 1215220 $ 1,120,375 § 173,092 §&  (947,283)
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Budgetary information

Budgetary information is derived from the annual operating budget and is presented using the
same basis of accounting for each fund as described in Note L.C.

The County controls expenditures at the agency level of expenditures except for certain agencies
{i.e., corporation counsel) which are adopted by individual programs and/or groups of programs
{i.e., child support), within the agency. Some individual agencies experienced expenditures
which exceeded appropriations in the general fund:

Excess expendifures over appropriations are as follows:

Amended Annual
Budget Expenditures Excess
General Fund
Current Expenditures
Sheriff $ 50,009,819 § 52,362,750 $ 2,352,931
Public Safety Communications 4,571,345 4,771,827 200,482
Juvenile Court Program 2,957,385 3,011,703 54,318
Clerk of Courts 2,411,914 2,850,711 438,797
Coroner 902,951 928,317 25,366
District Attorney 3,869,191 4,042,504 173,313
Public Works 547,891 623,006 75,115
Henry Vilas Zoo 1,763,439 1,787,376 23,937

The excess expenditures were funded through transfers from other general fund agencies which
had sufficient funds available.

Page 91




GENERAL FUND

Schedule of Expenditures
Compared to Budget




SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET

COUNTY OF DANE

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2005

CURRENT EXPENDITURES

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
County Beard
Executive
County Clerk
Administrative
Treasurer
Corporation Counsel
Register of Deeds
Facilities Management
Humane Society
Other

Total General Govemment

HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Veterans' Services

PUBLIC SAFETY AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE
Sheriff
Public Safety Communications
Emergency Planning
Juvenile Court Program
Clerk of Courts
Family Court Commissioner
Coroner
District Attomey

Total Public Safety and Criminal Justice

PUBLIC WORKS
Parking Ramp
Public Works
Total Public Works

CULTURE, EDUCATION AND RECREATION
Henry Vilas Zoo
Parks
Alliant Center
County Extension
Other
Total Culture, Education and Recreation

CONSERVATION AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Land Conservation
Planning and Development

Total Conservation and Economic Development

Total Current Expenditures

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Original Final Actual Einal Budget
$ 770,416 § 804,583 760,833 43,750
1,881,004 1,944,759 1,846,243 98,516
546,292 551,492 507,024 44,468
6,322,597 6,462,247 6,280,474 181,773
582,190 582,190 521,570 60,620
4,776,908 4,955,807 4,847,626 8,181
1,409,377 1,409,377 1,318,058 91,319
6,900,350 5,906,904 5,559,189 347,715
430,103 430,103 430,103 -
85,600 85,600 - 85,600
22,704,837 23,133,062 22,171,120 961,942
420,026 449,195 397,978 61,217
49,133,308 50,009,819 52,362,750 {2,352,931)
4,571,345 4,571,345 4,771,827 (200,482)
. 1,162,263 1,497,916 1,162,750 335,166
2,846,475 2,957,385 3,011,703 (54,318}
2,335,212 2,411,914 2,850,711 (438,797)
8,086,603 8,109,510 7,885,098 224412
733,000 902,951 928,317 {25,366)
3,639,268 3,869,191 4,042,504 (173:313)
72,507,464 74,330,031 77,015,660 (2,685,629}
265,500 265,500 232,543 32,957
397,331 547,891 623,006 {75,115)
662,831 813,391 855,549 (42,158)
1,755,200 1,763,429 1,787,376 {23,937)
3,639,205 5,404,765 4,090,032 1,314,733
8,910,042 8,924,123 6,879,636 2,044,487
762,700 892,983 816,677 76,308
298,890 298,890 298,890 -
15,367,127 17,284,200 13872611 3,411,589
1,163,192 5,092,744 1,219,397 3,673,347
2,997,975 3,324,953 2,830,877 494,076
4,161,167 8,417,697 4,050,274 4,367,423
115,823,452 _ 124,427,576 _ 118,363,192 6,064,384
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Budgeted Amounts Variance with
CAPITAL OUTLAY Qriginal Final Actual Finatl Budget
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Facilities Management $ - 8 32694 § - % 32,694
Total General Government ' - 32,694 - 32,694
PUBLIC SAFETY AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE
Sheriff 294,100 901,416 769,416 132,000
Emergency Planning - 263,668 214,509 49,159
Total Public Safety and Criminal Justice 294,100 1,165,084 983,925 181,159
CULTURE, EDUCATION AND RECREATION
Parks 9,000 123,236 20,238 102,998
Alliant Center 432,500 1,156,873 497,637 659,236
Other - = - -
Total Culture, Education and Recreation 441,500 1,280,109 517,875 762,234
CONSERVATION AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
Planning and Development - 423,136 - 423,136
Total Conservation and Economic Development - 423,136 - 423,136
Total Capital Outlay 735,600 2,901,023 1,501,800 1,399,223
TOTAL CURRENT EXPENDITURES
AND CAPITAL OUTLAY $ 116,559,052 $127.328599 $119,864992 $§ 7463,607
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April 5, 2007

Re:  Dane County, Wisconsin ("Issuer")
$29,340,000 General Obligation Airport Bonds, Series 2007A,
dated April 1, 2007 ("Bonds")

We have acted as bond counsel to the Issuer in connection with the issuance of the
Bonds. In such capacity, we have examined such law and such certified proceedings,
certifications, and other documents as we have deemed necessary to render this opinion.

Regarding questions of fact material to our opinion, we have relied on the certified
proceedings and other certifications of public officials and others furnished to us without
undertaking to verify the same by independent investigation.

The Bonds are numbered from R-1 and upward; bear interest at the rates set forth below;
and mature on June 1 of each year, in the years and principal amounts as follows:

Year Principal Amount Interest Rate
2008 $2,465,000 4.00%
2009 2,555,000 4.00
2010 2,655,000 4.00
2011 2,755,000 4.00
2012 2,855,000 4.00
2013 2,965,000 4.00
2014 3,080,000 4.00
2015 3,205,000 4,00
2016 3,335,000 4.00
2017 3,470,000 4.00

Interest is payable semi-annually on June 1 and December 1 of each year commencing on
December 1, 2007.

The Bonds maturing on June 1, 2016 and thereafter are subject to redemption prior to
maturity, at the option of the Issuer, on June 1, 2015 or on any date thereafter. Said Bonds are
redeemable as a whole or in part, and if in part, from maturities selected by the Issuer and within
each maturity by lot, at the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the date of
redemption,
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We further certify that we have examined a sample of the Bonds and find the same to be
in proper form.

Based upon our examination, it is our opinion under existing law that:

1. The Bonds have been duly authorized and executed by the Issuer and are valid and
binding general obligations of the Issuer.

2. All the taxable property in the territory of the Issuer is subject to the levy of ad
valorem taxes to pay principal of, and interest on, the Bonds, without limitation as to rate or
amount, The Issuer is required by law to include in its annual tax levy the principal and interest
coming due on the Bonds except to the extent that necessary funds have been irrevocably
deposited into the debt service fund account established for the payment of the principal of and
interest on the Bonds.

3. The interest on the Bonds is excludable for federal income tax purposes from the gross
income of the owners of the Bonds. The interest on the Bonds is not an item of tax preference
for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax imposed by Section 55 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") on corporations (as that term is defined for
federal income tax purposes) and individuals. However, for purposes of computing the
altemative minimum tax imposed on corporations, the interest on the Bonds is included in
adjusted current earnings. The Code contains requirements that must be satisfied subsequent to
the issuance of the Bonds in order for interest on the Bonds to be or continue to be excludable
from gross income for federal income tax purposes. Failure to comply with certain of those
requirements could cause the interest on the Bonds to be included in gross income retroactively
to the date of issuance of the Bonds. The Issuer has agreed to comply with all of those
requirements. The opinion set forth in the first sentence of this paragraph is subject to the
condition that the Issuer comply with those requirements. We express no opinion regarding
other federal tax consequences arising with respect to the Bonds.

We express no opinion regarding the accuracy, adequacy, or completeness of the Official
Statement or other offering material relating to the Bonds. Further, we express no opinion
regarding tax consequences arising with respect to the Bonds other than as expressly set forth
herein.

The rights of the owners of the Bonds and the enforceability thereof may be subject to
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and similar laws affecting creditors' rights
and may be subject to the exercise of judicial discretion in accordance with general principles of
equity, whether considered at law or in equity.

This opinion ts given as of the date hereof, and we assume no obligation to revise or
supplement this opinion to reflect any facts or circumstances that may hereafter come to our
attention, or any changes in law that may hereafter occur.
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$29,340,000
General Obligation Airport Bonds, Series 2007A,
Dane County, Wisconsin

OFFICIAL NOTICE OF SALE

Date, Time and Place. SEALED AND ELECTRONIC BIDS will be received by Public
Financial Management, Inc., 115 South 84™ Street, Suite 100, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53214,
financial advisor acting on behalf of Dane County, Wisconsin (the “County”), for all but not part
of the County’s $29,340,000 General Obligation Airport Bonds, Series 2007A, dated April 1,
2007 (the “Bonds”), until 10:00 a.m. (Central Time) on:

March 15, 2007

at which time sealed bids will be opened, electronic bids retrieved and all bids publicly read.
Sealed bids should be mailed or delivered to the offices of Public Financial Management, Inc.,
115 South 84" Street, Suite 100, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53214, Attention: Brian Della, or faxed
to (414) 771-1041, and plainly marked “Bid for Dane County General Obligation Airport Bonds,
Series 2007A.” Bids will only be considered if the required good faith deposit or financial
surety bond has been received. Electronic bids must be submitted through Parity®. A meeting
of the County Board of the Supervisors will he held on said date for the purpose of taking action
on such bids as may be received.

Terms of the Bonds. The Bonds will be dated April 1, 2007 and will mature June 1 in the
years and amounts as follows:

MATURITY SCHEDULE

Year Amount

2008 $ 2,465,000
2009 2,555,000
2010 2,655,000
2011 2,755,000
2012 2,855,000
2013 2,965,000
2014 3,080,000
2015 3,205,000
2016 3,335,000
2017 3,470,000

Interest on said Bonds will be payable semi-annually on June 1 and December 1, commencing
December 1, 2007.

Term Bond Option. Proposals for the Bonds may contain a maturity schedule providing
for a combination of serial and term bonds, subject to mandatory redemption, so long as the
amount of principal maturing or subject to mandatory redemption in each year conforms to the
maturity schedule set forth above.




Call Feature. At the option of the County, the Bonds maturing on June 1, 2016 and
thereafter shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity on June 1, 2015 or on any date
thereafter at a price of par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption. Said Bonds shall be
redeemable in whole or in part, in such order of maturity as the County may select, at a price of
par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption.

Registration. The Bonds will be issued as fully registered bonds without coupons and,
when issued, will be registered only in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for The Depository
Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”). The County will assume no liability for failure
of DTC, its participants or other nominees to promptly transfer payments to beneficial owners of
the Bonds. In the event that the securities depository relationship with DTC for the Bonds is
terminated and the County does not appoint a successor depository, the County will prepare,
authenticate and deliver, at its expense, fully registered certificated Bonds in the denomination of
$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof in the aggregate principal amount of Bonds of the same
maturities and with the same interest rate or rates then outstanding to the beneficial owners of the
Bonds.

Security and Purpose. The Bonds are general obligations of the County. The principal of
and interest on the Bonds will be payable from ad valorem taxes, which shall be levied without
limitation as to rate or amount upon all taxable property located in the territory of the County.
The Bonds are to be issued to finance the cost of the construction of a parking ramp addition at
the Dane County Airport and issuance expenses.

Not Bank Qualified. The Bonds will not be designated “qualified tax-exempt
obligations” pursuant to the provisions of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended.

Bid Specifications. Bids shall be received on an interest rate basis in an integral multiple
of One-Twentieth (1/20) or One-Eighth (1/8) of One Percent (1%). Any number of rates may be
bid, but no interest rate specified for any maturity may be lower than the interest rate specified
for any earlier maturity. All Bonds of the same maturity shall bear the same interest rate. A rate
of interest must be named for each maturity; a zero rate of interest shall not be named; and the
premium, if any, must be paid in cash as part of the purchase price. No supplemental interest
shall be specified. Each bid shall offer to purchase all of the Bonds and shall offer a price
(payable in federal or other immediately available funds) which is not less than $29,178,630
(99.45% of par) plus accrued interest to the date of delivery. The County reserves the right, in
its discretion, to reject any or all bids, and to waive any informality in any bid.

Good Faith Deposit. A good faith deposit in the amount of Two Hundred Ninety-Three
Thousand Four Hundred Dollars ($293,400) must be submitted with each bid. The good faith
deposit must be in the form of a certified or cashier’s check or a financial surety bond, payable to
the Treasurer of the County. If a check is used, it must accompany each bid. If a financial surety
bond is used, it must be from an insurance company licensed to issue such a financial surety
bond in the State of Wisconsin and preapproved by Public Financial Management, Inc. and such
financial surety bond must be submitted to Public Financial Management, Inc. prior to the
opening of bids. The financial surety bond must identify each bidder whose deposit is
guaranteed by such financial surety bond. If the Bonds are awarded to a bidder utilizing a
financial surety bond, that purchaser is required to submit its deposit to the County in the form of
a wire transfer not later than 3:30 p.m. (Central Time) on the next business day following the
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award. If such deposit is not received by that time, the financial surety bond may be drawn on
by the County to satisfy the deposit requirement. The deposit of the successful bidder shall
constitute a good faith deposit and shall be retained by the County to insure performance of the
requirements of the sale by the successful bidder. In the event the successful bidder shall fail to
comply with the terms of its bid, the deposit will be forfeited as full and complete liquidated
damages. Upon delivery of the Bonds, the deposit will be applied to the purchase price of the
Bonds or returned to the purchaser, but no interest shall be allowed thereon. After the award is
made to the successful bidder, the deposits of the unsuccessful bidders will be returned
forthwith.

Insurance on Bonds. In the event the successful bidder obtains a bond insurance policy
for all or a portion of the Bonds, by or on behalf of it or any other member of its underwriting
group, the successful bidder is responsible for making sure that disclosure information is
provided about the credit enhancement provider (for example, through a wrapper to the Official
Statement). The County will cooperate with the successful bidder in this manner. The costs of
obtaining any bond insurance policy and the costs of providing disclosure information about the
credit enhancement provider shall be paid by the successful bidder. In addition, the successful
bidder will be required, as a condition for delivery of the Bonds, to certify that the premium will
be less than the present value of the interest expected to be saved as a result of such insurance.

Electronic Bidding. The County assumes no responsibility or liability for electronic bids.
If any provisions in this Official Notice of Sale conflict with information provided by Parity®,
this Official Notice of Sale shall control. Further information about the electronic bidding
service providers, including any fee charged and applicable requirements, may be obtained from:

Parity®/i-Deal
1359 Broadway, 2™ Floor
New York, New York 10018
(212) 849-5021 phone

Award. All bids received shall be considered at a meeting of the County Board of
Supervisors to be held on the bidding date and, unless all bids are rejected, the Bonds shall be
awarded during the County Board meeting on said date to the best bidder whose proposal shall
result in the lowest true interest cost rate to the County. The true interest cost is computed as the
discount rate which, when used with semiannual compounding to determine the present worth of
the principal and interest payments as of the date of the Bonds, produces an amount equal to the
purchase price. If two or more bids provide the same lowest true interest rate, the County shall
determine which proposal shall be accepted, and such determination shall be final.
A computation by the bidder of such true interest cost rate contained in any bid shall be for
information only and shall not constitute a part of the bid. The purchaser shall pay accrued
interest from the date of the Bonds to the date of delivery and payment of the purchase price.

Delivery. The Bonds will be delivered in typewritten form, registered in the name of
Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company, securities depository of the Bonds
for the establishment of book-entry accounts at the direction of the successful bidder, within
approximately 45 days after the award. Payment at the time of delivery must be made in federal
or other immediately available funds. In the event delivery is not made within 45 days after the
date of the sale of the Bonds, the successful bidder may, prior to tender of the Bonds, at its
option, be relieved of its obligation under the contract to purchase the Bonds and its good faith
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check shall be returned, but no interest shall be allowed thereon. Delivery of the Bonds is
currently anticipated to be on or about April 5, 2007.

Legal Opinion. The successful bidder will be furnished without cost, the unqualified
approving legal opinion of Quarles and Brady LLP, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, Bond Counsel.
A Continuing Disclosure Certificate will be delivered at closing setting forth the details and
terms of the County’s undertaking and such Continuing Disclosure Certificate is a condition of
closing.

CUSIP Numbers. The County will assume no obligation for the assignment of CUSIP
numbers on the Bonds or for the correctness of any numbers printed thereon. The County will
permit such numbers to be assigned and printed at the expense of the original purchaser, but
neither the failure to print such numbers on any Bonds nor any error with respect thereto will
constitute cause for failure or refusal by the original purchaser to accept delivery of the Bonds.

Reoffering Price. Simultaneously with or before delivery of the Bonds, the successful
bidder shall furnish to the County a certificate, made on the best knowledge, information and
belief of the successful bidder, acceptable to Bond Counsel, stating the initial reoffering price to
the public of the Bonds and further stating that a substantial amount of the Bonds was sold to the
public or final purchasers thereof (not including bond houses and brokers or similar persons or
organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters or wholesalers) at or below such initial
reoffering price.

Official Statement. Upon the sale of the Bonds, the County will publish an Official
Statement in substantially the same form as the Preliminary Official Statement subject to minor
additions, deletions and revisions as required to complete the Preliminary Official Statement.
Promptly after the sale date, but in no event later than seven business days after such date, the
County will provide the successful bidder with up to 75 copies of the final Official Statement
without cost. The successful bidder agrees to supply to the County all necessary pricing
information and any underwriter identification necessary to complete the final Official Statement
within 24 hours after the award of Bonds.

Certification Regarding Official Statement. The County will deliver, at closing, a
certificate, executed by appropriate officers of the County acting in their official capacities, to
the effect that the facts contained in the Official Statement relating to the County and the Bonds
are true and correct in all material respects, and that the Official Statement does not contain any
untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.

Undertaking to Provide Continuing Disclosure. In order to assist bidders in complying
with SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended, the County will covenant to undertake (pursuant to a
Resolution to be adopted by the Board of the County), to provide annual reports and timely
notice of certain events for the benefit of holders of the Bonds. The details and terms of the
undertaking are set forth in a Continuing Disclosure Certificate to be executed and delivered by
the County, a form of which is included in the Preliminary Official Statement and in the final
Official Statement.

Transcript of Proceedings. A transcript of the proceedings relative to the issuance of the
Bonds will be furnished to the successful bidder without cost, including a Closing Certificate
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stating that there is no litigation pending or threatened affecting the validity of or the security for
the Bonds.

Irreqularities. The County Board of Supervisors reserves the right to reject any and all
bids and to waive any and all irregularities.

Information. The Official Statement can be viewed on the worldwide web at
www.pfm.com or copies of the Preliminary Official Statement and additional information may
be obtained by addressing inquiries to the County’s financial advisor, Public Financial
Management, Inc., 115 South 84™ Street, Suite 100, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53214, Attention:
Brian Della,, phone (414) 771-2700, or to the undersigned:

Charles Hicklin, Controller
Dane County, Wisconsin
210 Martin Luther King, Jr. Blvd., Room 426
Madison, Wisconsin 53703
(608) 266-4109 phone
(608) 266-4425 fax
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE

This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the "Disclosure Certificate") is executed and
delivered by Dane County, Wisconsin (the "Issuer") in connection with the issuance of
$29,340,000 General Obligation Airport Bonds, Series 2007A, dated April 1, 2007 (the
"Securities”). The Securities are being issued pursuant to an Authorizing Resolution adopted by
the Governing Body of the Issuer on February 15, 2007 and an Award Resolution adopted by the
Governing Body of the Issuer on March 15, 2007 (collectively, the "Resolution") and delivered
to First Southwest Company, Dallas, Texas (the "Purchaser") on the date hereof, Pursuant to the
Resolution, the Issuer has.covenanted and agreed to provide continuing disclosure of certain
financial information and operating data and timely notices of the occurrence of certain events.
In addition, the Issuer hereby specifically covenants and agrees as follows:

Section 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate. This Disclosure Certificate is being
executed and delivered by the Issuer for the benefit of the holders of the Securities in order to
assist the Participating Underwriters within the meaning of the Rule (defined herein) in
complying with SEC Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5). References in this Disclosure Certificate to holders of
the Securities shall include the beneficial owners of the Securities. This Disclosure Certificate
constitutes the written Undertaking required by the Rule. Any filing under this Disclosure
Certificate may be made solely by transmitting such filing to the Texas Municipal Advisory
Council (the "MAC™") as provided at http.//www.disclosureusa.org unless the United States
Securities and Exchange Commission has withdrawn the interpretive advice in its letter to the
MAC dated September 7, 2004,

Section 2. Definitions. In addition to the defined terms set forth in the Resolution, which
apply to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Certificate unless otherwise defined in this
Section, the following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings:

"Annual Report” means any annual report provided by the Issuer pursuant to, and as
described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate.

"Audited Financial Statements" means the Issuer's annual financial statements, which are
currently prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for
governmental units as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and
which the Issuer intends to continue to prepare in substantially the same form.

"Final Official Statement" means the final Official Statement dated March 15, 2007
delivered in connection with the Securities, which is available from the MSRB.

"Fiscal Year" means the fiscal year of the Issuer.

"Governing Body" means the County Board of Supervisors of the Issuer or such other
body as may hereafier be the chief legislative body of the Issuer.

"Issuer” means Dane County, Wisconsin which is the obligated person with respect to the
Securities.
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"Issuer Contact” means the Controller of the Issuer who can be contacted at 210 Martin
Luther King, Jr. Boulevard, Room 426, Madison, Wisconsin 53703, phone (608) 266-4109, fax
(608) 266-4425.

"Material Event" means any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure
Certificate.

"MSRB" means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board located at 1900 Duke Street,
Suite 600, Alexandria, Virginia 22314,

"NRMSIR" means any nationally recognized municipal securities information repository
as recognized from time to time by the SEC for purposes of the Rule.

"Participating Underwriter” means any of the original underwriter(s) of the Securities
(including the Purchaser) required to comply with the Rule in connection with the offering of the
Securities.

"Repository” means each NRMSIR and each SID, if any.

"Rule” means SEC Rule 15¢2-12(b}5) promulgated by the SEC under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time, and official
terpretations thereof.

"SEC" means the Securities and Exchange Commission.

"SID" means any public or private repository or entity designated by the State of
Wisconsin as a state information depository for the purpose of the Rule. As of the date of this
Certificate, there is no SID.

Section 3. Provision of Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements.

(a) The Issuer shall, not later than 365 days after the end of the Fiscal Year,
commencing with the year that ended December 31, 2006, provide each Repository with an
Annual Report which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure
Certificate. The Annual Report may be submitted as a single document or as separate documents
comprising a package, and may cross-reference other information as provided in Section 4 of this
Disclosure Certificate; provided that the Audited Financial Statements of the Issuer may be
submitted separately from the balance of the Annual Report and that, if Audited Financial
Statements are not available within 365 days after the end of the Fiscal Year, unaudited financial
information will be provided, and Audited Financial Statements will be submitted to each
Repository when and if available.

(b}  If the Issuer is unable or fails to provide to the Repositories an Annual Report by
the date required in subsection (a), the Issuer shall send in a timely manner a notice of that fact to
the NRMSIRs, the MSRB and any SID.

() The Issuer shall determine each year prior to the date for providing the Annual
Report the name and address of each NRMSIR and each SID, if any.
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Section 4. Content of Annual Report. The Issuer's Annual Report shall contain or
incorporate by reference the Audited Financial Statements and updates of the following sections
of the Final Official Statement to the extent such financial information and operating data are not
included in the Audited Financial Statements:

1. Indebtedness
2, Financial Information
3. Property Valuations and Taxes

Any or all of the items listed above may be incorporated by reference from other
documents, including official statements of debt issues of the Issuer or related public entities,
which have been submitted to each of the Repositories or the SEC. If the document incorporated
by reference is a final official statement, it must be available from the MSRB. The Issuer shall
clearly identify each such other document so incorporated by reference.

Section 5. Reporting of Material Events.

(@)  This Section 5 shall govern the giving of notices of the occurrence of any of the
following events if material with respect to the Securities:

1. Principal and interest payment delinquencies;

2. Non-payment related defaults;

3. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial
difficulties;

4. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial
difficulties;

5. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;

6. Adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax-exempt status of the
Securities;

7. Modification to rights of holders of the Securities;

8. Securities calls;

9. Defeasances;

10. Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the
Securities; and

11.  Rating changes.

(b) Whenever a Material Event occurs, the Issuer shall as soon as possible determine
under applicable legal standards if such event would constitute material information for holders
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of Securities, provided, that any event under subsection (a} (8), (9) or (11) will always be
deemed to be material.

(c) If the Issuer determines that knowledge of the occurrence of a Material Event
would be material, the Issuer shall promptly file a notice of such occurrence with either all
NRMSIRs or with the MSRB and with any SID. Notwithstanding the foregoing, notice of
Material Events described in subsections (a) (8) and (9) need not be given under this subsection
any earlier than the notice (if any) of the underlying event is given to holders of affected
Securities pursuant to the Resolution,

(d)  Unless otherwise required by law and subject to technical and economic
feasibility, the Issuer shall employ such methods of information transmission as shall be
requested or recommended by the designated recipients of the Issuer's information.

Section 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The Issuer's obligations under the
Resolution and this Disclosure Certificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior

redemption or payment in full of all the Securities.

Section 7, Issuer Contact; Agent. Information may be obtained from the Issuer Contact.
Additionally, the Issuer may, from time to time, appoint or engage a dissemination agent to assist
it in catrying out its obligations under the Resolution and this Disclosure Certificate, and may
discharge any such agent, with or without appointing a successor dissemination agent.

Section 8. Amendment; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Resolution
or this Disclosure Certificate, the Issuer may amend this Disclosure Certificate, and any
provision of this Disclosure Certificate may be waived, if such amendment or waiver is
supported by an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel to the effect that such amendment
or waiver would not, in and of itself, cause the undertakings to violate the Rule. The provisions
of this Disclosure Certificate constituting the Undertaking or any provision hereof, shall be null
and void in the event that the Issuer delivers to each then existing NRMSIR and the SID, if any,
an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel to the effect that those portions of the Rule
which require this Disclosure Certificate are invalid, have been repealed retroactively or
otherwise do not apply to the Securities. The provisions of this Disclosure Certificate
constituting the Undertaking may be amended without the consent of the holders of the
Securities, but only upon the delivery by the Issuer to each then existing NRMSIR and the SID,
if any, of the proposed amendment and an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel to the
effect that such amendment, and giving effect thereto, will not adversely affect the compliance of
this Disclosure Certificate and by the Issuer with the Rule.

Section 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be
deemed to prevent the Issuer from disseminating any other information, using the means of
dissemination set forth in this Disclosure Certificate or any other means of communication, or
including any other information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Material
Event, in addition to that which is required by this Disclosure Certificate. If the Issuer chooses
to include any information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Material Event in
addition to that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Certificate, the Issuer shall have
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no obligation under this Disclosure Certificate to update such information or include it in any
future Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Material Event.

Section 10. Default. (a) The Issuer has never failed to comply in all material respects
with any previous undertakings under the Rule to provide annual reports or notices of material
events,

(b) In the event of a failure of the Issuer to comply with any provision of this Disclosure
Certificate any holder of the Securities may take such actions as may be necessary and
appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific performance by court order, to cause the
Issuer to comply with its obligations under the Resolution and this Disclosure Certificate. A
default under this Disclosure Certificate shall not be deemed an event of default with respect to
the Securities and the sole remedy under this Disclosure Certificate in the event of any failure of
the Issuer to comply with this Disclosure Certificate shall be an action to compel performance.

Section 11. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit of
the Issuer, the Participating Underwriters and holders from time to time of the Securities, and
shall create no rights in any other person or entity.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, we have executed this Certificate in our official capacities
effective the 5th day of April, 2007.

Scott A. McDonell
Chairperson

(SEAL)

Robert H. Ohlsen
County Clerk
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